Fairhaven Board of Selectmen
Meeting Minutes
June 3, 2019

AR
B I

f_.'Ci:"'E'd Iu-

Attendance: Chairman Charles Murphy, Sr., Vice- Chairman Robert Espindola, Clerk Daniel
Freitas, Town Administrator Mark Rees, Vicki Paquette

Mr. Murphy called the meeting to order at 6:33 pm
Mr. Murphy announced the meeting is being filmed by Cable access.
TOWN ADMINISTRATORS REPORT

e Mr. Rees read a memo from Police Chief Myers updating the Board on the progress of
the Opioid Task Force. Mr. Rees said the group meets monthly and are planning to film a
Public Service Announcement through Cable Access

COMMITTEE LIASONS
Mr. Espindola said Marine Resources will be meeting on Thursday, June 6, 2017.

Mr. Freitas said he will be attending a meeting with the Renaming Committee on June 12, 2019
to discuss the renaming of the Fairhaven High School athletic field.

Mr. Murphy told the Board the Whitfeild- Manjiro House will be sponsoring a learn Japanese
workshop.

MELANSON AND HEATH

Frank Byron, principal at the audit firm Melanson and Heath and Finance Director Wendy
Graves met with the Board to show the Board the latest report for the Town’s financial
statement. (Attachment A)Mr. Byron explained the Town’s bond rating has jumped from last
year thanks to the strong financial management team the town has. The Town’s free cash is at a
record high balance of 6.2 million dollars. Overall the Town is in a good financial situation. Mr.
Rees thanked the Finance Director Wendy Graves and Town Accountant Anne Carreiro and their
staff for all their hard work.

TIM COX SHELLFISH CONSTABLE OF THE YEAR

Edgartown Shellfish Constable, Paul Bangal met with the Board to present Fairhaven
Harbormaster Timothy Cox the Shellfish Constable of the year award. This award is given
annually by the Massachusetts Shellfish Officers Association. The Board thanked Harbormaster
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Cox for all his hard work and dedication the Town of Fairhaven. A humbled Mr. Cox accepted
the award in front of a room full of family, friends and co-workers.

WEST ISLAND REGATTA

Chairman Murphy read a letter from the West Island Improvement Association requesting the use of
Hoppy’s Landing for the annual regatta. (Attachment B)

Mr. Espindola made a motion to approve the West Island Improvement Association use of
Hoppy’s Landing for the annual regatta on July 20, 2019 and the parking fees be waived. Mr.
Freitas seconded. Vote was unanimous. (3-0)

119 SYCAMORE STREET

Sycamore Street Resident Chris Pinhancos met with the Board to ask the Town what can be done
with the Town owned lot across the street from his property. Mr. Pinhancos explained that the
lots on either side of the town lot along with the town’s land are unkept and as a result his
property value has dropped. He is asking the Board permission to have the lot cleaned. Mr.
Murphy read a memo from Conservation agent Whitney McClees on her recommendations.
(Attachment C) Mr. Espindola made a motion to authorize the Town Administrator to give
permission and approval to submit a Notice of Intent to the Conservation Commission, at which
point the Conservation Commission will determine the feasibility of the project. Mr. Freitas
seconded. Vote was unanimous (3-0)

FAIRHAVEN HOUSING AUTHORITY

At 7:08 pm, in a joint meeting members of the Housing Authority, John Farrell, Anne Silveira,
Jean Rousseau and Chairman Jay Simmons met with the Board of Selectmen to appoint someone
to fill the vacant seat most recently held by Gregory Tutcik. The position will only be filled until
the next town election and then will have to be placed on the ballot. The four candidates for the
open seat, Carol Alfonso, Jay Malaspino, Elenor Chew and Nicholas Sylvia each expressed why
they felt they would be the best person for this position. Both Boards thanked the candidates for
expressing an interest in this position. Mr. Simmons nominated Nicholas Sylvia. Ms. Silveira
seconded. Mr Rousseau nominated Ms. Alfonso. Ms. Silveira seconded.

Votes were taken as follows:

For Nicholas Sylvia: John Farrell, Jay Simmons, Robert Espindola, Daniel Freitas, Charles
Murphy Sr.

For Carol Alfonse: Anne Silveira, Jean Rousseau.

Mr. Sylvia was appointed the Housing Authority Board by a 5-2 vote to continue the term until
the next town election in April of 2020.

RASPUTAINS TAVERN HEARING CONTINUANCE

At 7:27 Chairman Murphy continued the hearing for Rasputin’s from May 6, 2019. In attendance
was Ellen Cebula, co- owner, Rasputin’s Attorney Christopher Markey, Mr. Joey Auger,
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Fairhaven Police Chief Michael Myers, Captain Michael Botelho, Detective Sergeant Matthew
Botelho and Town Counsel Tom Crotty. Mr. Espindola made a motion to enter into the record
the 2016 Police reports, email from Attorney Markey showing the status of the security at
Rasputin’s , two sets of compliance reports from the Fairhaven Police Department and the
security plan. Mr. Freitas seconded. VVote was unanimous. (3-0) (Attachments D - G)

The Board reviewed the security plan provided by Rasputin’s and felt this was an overall good
plan. Attorney Markey stated that he will begin the paperwork to the Alcohol Beverage Control
Commission (ABCC) listing Mr. Auger as the manager. Attorney Crotty explained that the
manager listed with the ABCC is the person who is in charge of the overall operations of the
establishment but does not have to be the manager on duty during all the working hours.

Attorney Crotty explained to the Board the number of different actions that could be taken by the
Board ranging from doing nothing to suspending the license or a probationary period. Mr. Freitas
feels that there is an extensive problem at the bar and the neighbors and the Police Department
are getting frustrated.

Attorney Markey feels that some of the Findings of the Facts (Attachment H) should be revised.
There was a violation for serving underage drinking but the bar used a valid driver’s license as
the form of ID, so therefore the bar upheld what they are supposed to do. There are underage
patrons sometimes in the bar because the bar serves food. The bar now has a scanner that checks
the ID’s and stores the information for the future. Chief Myers attested to the fact that there were
underage drinkers at the bar when undercover officers were there. Atttorney Markey stated that
out of 17 police reports only 3 of them resulted in arrests and 3 protective custodies. The security
plan is trying to address all these issues.

Neighbors Rui DaSilva, Cheryl Gwordz, Steve Robbins, Paul Boyle, and Jesse Neagley all
voiced their extreme frustrations and concerns over the screaming and yelling that comes from
the bar. There’s fighting going on and bottles are being tossed into their yards. Some neighbors
have had some acts of vandalism done to their properties ranging from slashed tires, broken
screens and patrons urinating on their properties.

Sarah Bland, Andrea Cebula, Christopher Kopley, and Kyle Lemiuex all feel that the report is
not as bad as it seems and some of what happens once the patrons leave the bar is not Rasputin’s
fault what happens. There are more incidents of police reports because the bar tenders call the
police more when they have intoxicated customers. They have no control over what happens
once someone steps out of their establishment.

Mr. Freitas expressed that he doesn’t want to hurt a business or see employees lose their revenue,
so it is up to the employees to make sure that the security plan is in place and the bar stays on
track. Mr. Murphy would like to see the hearing stay open until September 9, 2019 with
Rasputin’s being on a probation. Based on Rasputin’s suggestion that the bar close early since
most of the problems occur when the bar closes the Board members also feel the bar should close
at 1 am instead of the 2 am time that they normally close at. Mr. Espindola feels he is basing his
decision on the Police recommendations and he fully supports them.
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Mr. Espindola made a motion to close the hearing, and to impose a two-part license suspension:
the first part to be served beginning immediately in segments of one hour each day between 1 am
and 2 am, with regular hours to resume on September 9, 2019; and the second part of the
suspension to be served on eight full days, that second part of the suspension is stayed and will
be withdrawn provided that no additional license violation occurs before September 9, 2019. In
the event an additional violation occurs before September 9, 2019 the eight day suspension will
be served, in addition to any penalty imposed for the additional violation. Mr. Freitas seconded.
Vote passed (2-1)

SUSTAINABILITY CHARGE
Mr. Rees explained that Sustainability Coordinator Whitney McClees has updated the current
charge for the Sustainability Committee to add that alternates can be voting members when there
is no quorum of full time members. The Board agreed they would like to have Mr. Rees go and
re-draft a few more changes to the charge before they make their final votes.

COSTABLE
Mr. Espindola made a motion to re-appoint Richard Ferreira as a Constable for one year. Mr.
Freitas seconded. VVote was unanimous. (3-0)

HANDICAP PARKING SIGN
Chairman Murphy read the recommendation from the Police Department regarding a handicap
parking sign on Middle Street. Mr. Espindola made a motion to recommend the handicap parking
space in front of 36 Middles Street. Mr. Freitas seconded. VVote was unanimous. (3-0)
(Attachment I)

KENO MACHINE
Mr. Murphy read a letter from the Massachusetts State Lottery Commission regarding a KENO
machine at Fairhaven Wine and Spirits, 105 Sconticut Neck Road. Mr. Rees explained there is
no action necessary unless they are opposed to the KENO. The Board took no action.

OTHER BUISINESS
e Mr. Espindola reminded residents that tomorrow he will be holding his monthly office
hour at Town Hall
Mr. Murphy said how nice the Memorial Day parade and ceremony at Riverside was
Mr. Murphy congratulated all the FHS Seniors Class of 2019 who graduated on Sunday
Mr. Murphy said there was over 2 million dollars in scholarships handed out this year
Both Mr. Espindola and Mr. Freitas also wished congratulations to the class of 2019.

At 9:09 pm Mr. Espindola made a motion to adjourn to executive session in accordance with

1. Real Estate Matters pursuant to M.G.L. Ch. 30A Sec. 21(a)6
a. 54 Main Street
b. Atlas Tack
c. Union Wharf
d. Rogers School
2. Collective Bargaining pursuant to M.G.L. Ch. 30A Sec. 21(a)3
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a. Police Union
b. Fire Union

and not to convene to open session. Mr. Freitas seconded. VVote was unanimous.
Roll Call vote taken: Mr. Murphy in favor, Mr. Espindola in favor, Mr. Freitas in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,

Vicki Paquette
Administrative Assistant
(Approved 7/22/2019)

Documents Appended:

A: Melanson and Heath report

B: West Island Regatta request letter

C: Conservation memo- 119 Sycamore Street
D: 2016 Rasputin’s Police reports

E: Email from Attorney Markey

F: 2 sets of compliance reports from FPD

G: Rasputin’s security plan

H: Rasputin’s findings of the facts

I: 36 Middle Street handicap sign
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
Independent Auditors’ Reports Pursuant
to Governmental Auditing Standards
and Uniform Guidance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Attachinent A
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Fairhaven,
Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town'’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Town’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Town'’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material



weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial state-
ments will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these lim-
itations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town'’s financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial state-
ment amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in con-
sidering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 25, 2019
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM,
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, AND
REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts’ compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Town’s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2018. The Town's major federal program is identified in the summary
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Town’s major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
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the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town’s compliance with those require-
ments and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
the major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of the Town's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance with the types of require-
ments that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to deter-
mine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Town's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, non-
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combi-
nation of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all defi-
ciencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over com-
pliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suit-
able for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform
Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's
basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2019, which
contained unmadified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted
for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform
Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

March 25, 2019



TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Chitd Mutrition Cluster
Passed Through Massachusetts Department of Elementary and
Secondary Education
School Breakfast Program
National Schocl Lunch Program - Cash Assistance
National Schog! Lunch Program - Non-Cash Assistance

Total Child Nutrition Cluster
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Federal Program

Community Development Block Grants/Entitement Grants
- Hedge Street

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Depariment of Interior
Passed Through Massachusetts Executive Office
of Environmenta! Services
Clean Vessel Acl Program

Total U.S. Department of Interior

U.S. Department of Justice
Direct
Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement of
Protection Orders Program

Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed Through Executive Office of Public Safety and Security
State and Community Highway Safety

Total U.S. Depariment of Transportation

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through Massachusets Execulive Office of Energy and
Enviranmental Affairs
National Estuary Program

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

U.5. Depariment of Education
Special Education Cluster
Passed Through Massachusetts Depanment of Elementary
and Secondary Education
Special Education Grants 1o States
Special Education Grants to States - Program Improvement

Passed Through Massachuselts Depariment of Early Education
and Care
Special Education Preschoal Grants - Early Childhood Allocation

Total Special Education Ciuster

Passed Through Massachusetts Depariment of Elementary
and Secondary Education
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Supporing Effeciive Instruction State Grant
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Frogram

Total U.S. Department of Educalion

U.S. Deparment of Health and Human Services
Passed Through Massachusetts Department of Health and
Human Services
Special Programs for the Aging Title lll, Parl B Grants for
Supportive Services and Senior Centers

Tetal U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S Deparment of Homeland Security
Passed Through Massachusetts Emergency Management Agency
Hazarg Mitigation Grant

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Total Federa! Expendilures

The accompanying notes are an integraf parl of this schedule

Federal
CFDA

Number

10.553
10.556
10.555

14218

15616

16.590

20.600

£6.456

84.027
84.027

84173

84.010
84.367
84.424

93.044

97.038

Pass Through
Identifying
Number

DOENUT201710SL-19
DOENUT2017105L-19
DOENUT201710SL-19

NiA

CVA REIMBURSEMENT 2017

NiA

POOTENF 8/14-9/4/17

FY18BBPTOWNOFFAIRHAVEN#1

240-146858-2018-0094-1.0
Unknown

262 18FAIRHAVENPUPAY1

305-141725-2018-0094-3.0
140-141726-2018-0084
309-164027-2018-0094-1.0

SFY18 COA FORMULA GRT

HMGP 4214-02

Federal
Expenditures

5 75411
348,591
92977

Passed
Through to
Subrecipient

516,979

516,979

601,794

521,144

601,794

14,367

521,144

14,367

1,637

1637

1,872

1,872

35,000

35,000

507,963
16,034

31,541

555.538

281417
64,873
9.025

910.853

16.494

18.494

26.180

26.180

§ 2127178

$

521,144




TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes
the federal award activity of the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of the Town, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Town.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

» Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.

e The amounts reported for the National School Lunch Program — Non-Cash
Assistance (Commodities) represent the fair value of commodities received.

» The Town has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.



TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
+ Material weaknesses identified? __yes ¥ no
» Significant deficiencies identified? ___yes _¥ none reported

Noncompliance material to financial state-
ments noted? yes v no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

* Material weaknesses identified? ___yes ¥ no

* Significant deficiencies identified? ___yes _v_ none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for
major programs:

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance with

2 CFR 200.516(a)? __yes ¥ no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.218 CDBG - Entitlement Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Y yes __ no



SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None.

SECTION lil - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None.

SECTION IV - SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
Current Year

Finding # Program Finding/Noncompliance Status
2017-001 10.553/10.555 Document Policies and Procedures Resolved

Over Federal Awards.




TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
Management Letter

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
INTRODUCTORY LETTER 1
PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS:
1.  Develop a More Formal Risk Assessment Process 3
2. Consider Reauthorizing OPEB Trust Fund Using
New Legislation Wording 3

CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATI{ON:

3. Improve Controls Over Student Activity Funds 4



MELANSON|mIFNEE

ACCOUNTANTS « AUDITORS

10 New England Business
Center Dr. « Suite 10/
Andover. MA 01810
(978)749-0005

melansonheath.com

Additional Offices:

Nashua. NH

Manchester, NH

Greenfield, MA
To the Board of Selectmen Ellsworth, ME

Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Town of
Fairhaven, Massachusetts as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 (except for the
Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2017), in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accord-
ingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control
over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

During our audit, we became aware of other matters that we believe represent oppor-
tunities for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. The recommenda-
tions that accompany this letter summarize our comments and suggestions concerning
those matters.

The Town’s written responses to our comments and suggestions have not been sub-
jected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.



The purpose of this communication, which is an integral part of our audit, is to describe
for management and those charged with governance, including those overseeing the
financial reporting process, the scope of our testing of internal control and the results
of that testing. Accordingly, this communication is not intended to be and should not
be used for any other purpose.

Molanoon Heath

March 25, 2019



PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. Develop a More Formal Risk Assessment Process

Prior Year Issue:

In the prior year, we recommended the Town implement a more formal risk
assessment process, including a written assessment of potential risk areas and
policies/procedures to mitigate these risks.

Current Year Status:
This was not addressed during fiscal year 2018.

Further Action Required:

We recommend the Town continue working to develop a comprehensive finan-
cial management and risk assessment policy framework that can be used by
all departments to monitor and mitigate risk. This framework should include,
but not be limited to, a formal assessment of the risks associated with the use
of information technology, including controls over user access to the Town's
financial software and controls over electronic banking transactions.

Town's Response:
The Town has collected a few samples of other Town's risk assessment policies
and in FY19 we are addressing this issue.

2. Consider Reauthorizing OPEB Trust Fund Using New Legislation Wording

Prior Year Issue:

In the prior year, we recommended the Town review the new language in MGL
Chapter 32B Section 20 and consider reauthorizing the OPEB Trust Fund by
formally re-accepting that provision.

Current Year Status:
This was not addressed during fiscal year 2018.

Further Action Required:

We continue to recommend the Town consider reauthorizing the OPEB Trust
Fund using the new legislation wording. This will provide the Town with increased
flexibility in investment and administrative options.

Town's Response:
The Town has an article addressing this at the STM on May 4, 2019.




CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATION:

3.

Improve Controls Over Student Activity Funds

The Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education guide-
lines require an annual audit of the student activity funds. An audit is required if a
student activity fund has greater than $25,000 in expenditures in a fiscal year.
Student activity funds with less than $25,000 in expenditures should be audited
once every three years. An audit performed by an independent audit firm should
be performed at least once every three years for those funds with activities greater
than $25,000. In the intervening years, the audit may be performed by a respon-
sible individual who is independent of the student funds. As a result of these
audits, an audit report must be issued.

The School Department’s student activity funds have not been audited since the
external audit performed for fiscal year 2016, which was performed in 2018.
That audit resulted in an audit report that summarized numerous areas where
controls should be improved. These issues could result in an increased risk of
errors or irregularities occurring and going undetected.

During our testing in 2018, we noted that the School Department did not have
procedures in place to reconcile the cash balance per the student activity fund
ledger to the total cash balance of the checking and savings accounts per the
bank. This was included as a recommendation in the fiscal year 2016 student
activity fund audit report.

We recommend an audit of the student activity funds be performed for fiscal year
2017 and fiscal year 2018. Additionally, we recommend the improvements iden-
tified in the 2016 student activity fund audit report be implemented. Furthermore,
we recommend the student activity fund ledger be reconciled to the total cash
per the bank on a monthly basis.

Town's Response:
The School's activity funds are currently under audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Additional Offices:

To the Board of Selectmen ik
Manchester, NH

Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts Greenfield, MA
Ellsworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activi-
ties, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2018, (except for the Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System, which is as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2017) and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed
in the Table of Contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Town’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and main-
tenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatermment of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that



are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2018, (except for the Fairhaven
Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 31,
2017) and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
Management's Discussion and Analysis, and the Pension and OPEB schedules appear-
ing on pages 61 to 64 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited proce-
dures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infor-
mation for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infor-
mation because the limited procedures do not provide us with evidence sufficient to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Information
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated March 25, 2019 on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and com-
pliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effective-
ness of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering Town's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 25, 2019



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts, we offer readers this narrative
overview and analysis of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018.

A. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements comprise three components:
(1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes
to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial state-
ments are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of our finances in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all assets, liabilities, and
deferred outflows/inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator
of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are prin-
cipally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, human
services, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities include sewer,
and water activities.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used
to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities
or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three cate-
gories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide finan-
cial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, gov-
ernmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
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spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a govern-
ment's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better under-
stand the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Reve-
nues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facil-
itate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities..

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the general fund. A budgetary com-
parison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compli-
ance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of oper-
ating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash
flows. The proprietary fund category includes enterprise and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report activity for which a fee is charged to external users,
and must be used when one of the following criteria are met: (1) activity is financed
with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees and
charges, (2) laws or regulations require the activity's costs of providing services be
recovered with fees and charges, and (3) the pricing policies of the activity establish
fees and charges designed to recover its costs, including capital costs such as
depreciation or debt service. The primary focus on these criteria is on fees charged
to external users. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented
as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. Specifically, enterprise funds are used to account for sewer and water
operations, which are considered to be major funds.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among various functions. Specifically, internal service funds are used
to account for self-insured employee health and dental programs. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the
benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are
not available to support the Town's own programs. The accounting used for fidu-
ciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements.




Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompa-
nying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information
which is required to be disclosed by accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America.

. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ As of the close of the current fiscal year, the total of assets and deferred outflows
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $90,518,758 (i.e., net position), a
change of $5,366,080 in comparison to the prior year.

« Atthe end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined end-
ing fund balances of $26,101,686, a change of $2,875,446 in comparison to the

prior year.

« At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general
fund was $10,359,151, a change of $1,883,794 in comparison to the prior year.

. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of condensed government-wide financial data for the
current and prior fiscal years. All amounts are presented in thousands.

NET POSITION
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current and other assets $ 366884 $ 31473 $ 10284 $ 6039 $ 47148 § 37512
Capital assets 95,984 99,959 31,738 32,225 127,722 132,184
Total assets 132,868 131,432 42,002 38,264 174,870 169,696
Deferred outflows of resources 3,757 4,361 576 656 4,333 5,017
Current liabilities 4,827 5457 2,786 516 7.623 5,973
Noncurrent liabilities 55,747 49073 5,741 7,292 61,488 56,365
Total liabilities 60,574 54,530 8,537 7,808 69,111 62,338
Deferred inflows of resources 18,447 532 1,127 98 19,574 630
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 86,539 86,126 27,339 27.435 113,878 113,561
Restricted 8,682 8,852 - - 8,682 8,852
Unrestricted {37,617) (14,247) 5,575 3,579 (32,042) (10,668)
Total net position $ 57604 $ 80731 % 32914 § 31014 $ 90518 $ 111,745

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govern-
ment's financial position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, total net posi-
tion was $90,518,758, a change of $5,366,080 from the prior year.



The largest portion of net position $113,877,558 reflects our investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. These capital
assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position $8,682,584 represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance
of unrestricted net position is a deficit of $(32,041,384), resulting from unfunded
net pension and OPEB liabilities (see Notes 24 and 26).

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenues;
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 5976 $ 5399 § 8528 % 6693 3 14504 $ 12,002
Operating grants and

contributions 17,037 15,601 - - 17,037 15,601
Capital grants and

contributions 460 450 - - 460 450

General revenues:

Property taxes 28,001 27,657 - - 28,001 27,657
Excises 2,220 1,935 - - 2,220 1,935
Penalties, interest and

other taxes 466 318 - - 4686 318
Grants and contributions

not restricted to specific

programs 3,293 3,105 - - 3,293 3,105
Investment income 17 87 (4) - 13 87
Miscellaneous 436 131 - - 436 131
Total revenues 57,906 54,683 8,524 6,693 66,430 61,376

Expenses:
General government 4,340 4 561 - - 4,340 4 561
Public safety 9,507 9,975 - - 9,507 9,975
Education 32,533 33,810 - - 32,533 33,810
Public works 3,694 3,931 - - 3,694 3,931
Human services 2,060 1,965 - - 2,060 1,965
Culture and recreation 1,375 1,234 - - 1,375 1,234
Interest on long-term debt 308 352 - - 308 352
Intergovernmental 435 437 - - 435 437
Sewer - - 4,169 4,023 4,169 4,023
Water - - 2,644 2,718 2,644 2,718
Total expenses 54 252 56,265 6,813 6,741 61,085 63,006
(continued)



{continued)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 018 2017
Change in net position

before transfers 3,654 (1,582) 1,711 (48) 5365 (1,630)
Transfers in (out) {19) {17} 19 17
Change in net position 3,635 (1,599) 1,730 {31} 5,365 (1,630)

* Net position - beginning of year

{as restated) 53,969 82,330 31,184 31,045 85,153 113,375
Net position - end of year $ 57604 $ 80,731 $ 32914 $ 31014 $ 90518 $ 111,745

* Restated from the prior year as described in Note 32,

Governmental activities. Governmental activities for the year resulted in a change
in net position of $3,635,513. Key elements of this change are as follows:

General fund operations, as discussed further

in Section D
Nonmajor governmental funds operations
Internal service fund operations

Depreciation expense in excess of debt service

principal paydown
Change in long-term liabilities

Change in net pension liability related deferred

outflows and infiows of resources
Change in net OPEB liability related deferred
outflows and inflows of resources
Other

Total

$ 3,045,150

(169,704)
(399,080)

(2,587,460)
19,186,234

(14,864,303)

(3,654,000)
3,078,676

$ 3,635,513

Business-type activities. Business-type activities for the year resulted in a change
in net position of $1,730,567. Key elements of this change are as follows:

Sewer fund operations
Water operations

Total

D. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF FUNDS

$ 1,500,224
230,343
$ 1,730,567

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance

with finance-related legal requirements.



Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such infor-
mation is useful in assessing financing reguirements. In particular, unassigned fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $26,101,686, a change of $2,875,446 in comparison to the prior
year. Key elements of this change are as follows:

General fund change in fund balance $ 3,045150
Nonmajor governmental funds change

in fund balance (169,704)

Total $ 2,875,446

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $10,359,151 while total fund bal-
ance was $17,365,425. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be
useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
general fund expenditures. Refer to the table below.

% of
Total General
General Fund 6/30/18 6/30117 Change Fund Expenditures
Unassigned fund balance "’ $ 10,359,151 $ 8475357 $ 1,883,794 21.9%
Total fund balance $ 17365425 $& 14,320,275 $ 3,045150 36.8%

Mingludes general stabilization fund.

The total fund balance of the general fund changed by $3,045,150 during the current
fiscal year. Key factors in this change are as follows:

Use of free cash and overlay surplus as a funding source $ (3,531,605)

Revenues in excess of budget 2,413,096
Expenditures less than budget 1,656,349
Change in stabilization 2,070,856
Other 436,454

Total $ 3,045,150

Included in the total general fund balance are the Town’s stabilization accounts with
the following balances:

6/30/18 6/30/17 Change
General stabilization $ 2951046 $ 3007613 § (66,567)
Ambulance stabilization 52,405 102,200 (49,795)
Capital stabilization 2,312,164 521,500 1,790,664
Special education reserve stabilization 386,554 - 386,554
Total $ 5702169 $ 3631313 $ 2,070,856

9



Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information found
in the business-type activities reported in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to
$5,575,569 a change of $1,996,285 in comparison to the prior year.

Unrestricted net position of the internal service fund at the end of the year amounted
to $1,835,420 a change of $(399,080) in comparison to the prior year.

Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds have already been
addressed in the entity-wide discussion of business-type activities.

. GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget resulted in
an overall change in appropriations of $91,152, Major reasons for these amendments
include:

e $57,600 to fund various department salaries and wages.
¢ $24 169 to fund various department operating expenses.

e $9,383 to fund the payment of various prior year bills.

Of this increase, $91,152 was funded from free cash.

. CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. Total investment in capital assets for governmental and business-
type activities at year-end amounted to $127,721,759 (net of accumulated depre-
ciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress,
buildings and system, improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included improvements to
various Town buildings, road infrastructure improvements, water and wastewater
infrastructure improvements, and the purchase of various public safety vehicles.

Credit rating. The Town of Fairhaven maintains an “Aa2” credit rating from Moody’s
Investors Service for general obligation debt.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstand-
ing was $12,145,095 all of which was backed by the full faith and credit of the
government.

Additional information on capital assets and long-term debt can be found in the Notes
to Financial Statements.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information

should be addressed to:

Finance Director/Treasurer/Collector
Town of Fairhaven
40 Center Street
Fairhaven, Massachusetts 02719
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TCOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Current:
Cash and short-term investments 3 21,514,710
Investments 8,711,068
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Property taxes 557,344
Excises 194,644
User fees 12,621
Deparimental and other 410,223
Special assessments 1,191
Intergovernmental 78775
Notes receivable 870,294
Deposits held by others 904,600
Other assets 449
Noncurrent:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Property taxes 1,133,140
User fees -
Special assessments 11,571
Intergovernmental 2,383,541
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 22542323
QOther capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation 73,441,253
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions 3,748,000
Related to OPEB 9,324
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 136,625,071
LIABILITIES
Current:
Warrants and accounts payable 2,025,245
Accrued liabilities 1,149,844
Notes payable -
Tax refunds payable 84,287
Other current liabilities 458,947
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable B55.714
Other 252,657
Noncurrent:
Bonds payable, net of current portion 8,589,000
Net pension liability 14,916,000
Net OPEB liability 30,590,638
Other, net of current portion 1,651,619
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related o pensions 3,573,000
Related fo OPEB 14,873,627
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOCURCES 79,020,578
NET POSITICN
Net investment in capital assets 86,538,862
Restricted for:
Grants and other statutory restrictions 5,641,489
Permanent funds:
Nonexpendable 2645413
Expendable 395,682
Unrestricted (37,616,953)
TOTAL NET POSITICN $ 57,604,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-Type

Activities Total

$ 6,112,047 $ 276278657
333,915 9,044,983

- 557,344

- 194,644
486,781 499,402

- 410,223
204,595 205,786
1,679,533 1,758,308
- 970,294

- 904,600

- 449

- 1,133,140
272,659 272,659
1,172,706 1,184,277

- 2,383,541
5,132,519 27,674,842
26,605,664 100,046,917
576,000 4,324,000
348 9,672

42 577,667 179,202,738
671,294 2,696,539

57,107 1,206,951
1,700,000 1,700,000
- 84,287

10,429 469,376
334,900 1,190,614
21,858 274,515

2,365,481 10,954,481
2,037,000 16,953,000
1,141,564 31,732,202
196,723 1,848,342
572,000 4,145,000
555,046 15,428,673
9,663,402 88,683,980
27,338,686 113,877,558
5,641,489

2,645,413

- 395,682
5,675,569 {32.041,384)
$ 32,514,265 $ 90,518,758
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2018

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments $ 13,858,508 $ 5,972,056 $ 19,830,564
Investments 5,675,422 3,035,646 8,711,068
Receivables:

Property taxes 1,877,324 17,634 1,894,958

Excises 316,724 - 316,724

User fees - 16,833 16,833

Departmental and other 410,221 410,221

Special assessmernits - 12,762 12,762

Intergovernmental 78,775 2,383,541 2,462,316
Notes receivable - 970,254 970,294
Other assets 451 - 451
TOTAL ASSETS $ 21,807,204 $ 12,818,087 $ 34,626,191
LIABILITIES

Warrants payahble $ 1,757,342 $ 267,902 § 2,025244

Accrued liabilities 335,353 8,628 343,981

Other liabilities 458,947 - 458,947
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,551,642 276,530 2,828,172
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues 1,890,137 3,806,196 5,696,333
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 2,645,413 2,645413

Restricted - 6,341,330 6,341,330

Committed 4,034,260 - 4,034,260

Assigned 2,972,014 - 2,972,014

Unassigned 10,359,151 {250,482) 10,108,669
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 17,365,425 8,736,261 26,101,686
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 21,807,204 $ 12,818,987 $ 34,626,191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCES TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

Total governmental fund balances $ 26,101,686

* Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 95,983,576

* Revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and are
not deferred until collection. 5,365,568

* Internal service funds are used by management to account for
health and dental insurance activities. The assets and
liabilities of the internat service funds are included with
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 1,835,420

* Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, net pension liability,
net OPEB liability are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (56,855,628)
* Other (14,826,129)
Net position of governmental activities $ 57,604,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 27,783,498 $ 378,894 $ 28,162,392
Excises 2,150,519 - 2,150,519
Penaities, interest and other taxes 463,327 2,747 466,074
Charges for services 3,362,775 2,110,891 5,473,666
Licenses and permits 530,450 - 530,450
Intergovernmental 13,978,303 3,812,136 17,780,439
Fines and forfeitures 1,218 - 1,218
Investment income 32,002 212,540 244 542
Contributions - 281530 281,530
Miscelianeous 523,383 140,067 663,450
Total Revenues 48,825 475 6,938,805 55,764,280
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 2,641,828 2,210,422 4,852,250
Public safety 6,796,318 222614 7,018,932
Education 24,351,846 2,400,758 26,752,604
Public works 2,511,514 193,707 2,705,221
Human services 1,595 115 284,094 1,879,209
Culture and recreation 1,159,676 11,378 1,171,054
Employee benefils 6,541,652 287,971 6,829,623
Debt service 1,171,676 - 1,171,676
Intergovernmental 434 872 - 434 872
Capital outlay 8,078 46,483 54 561
Total Expenditures 47,212,575 5,657,427 52,870,002
Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,612,900 1,281,378 2,894,278
Other Financing Sources (Uses}):
Transfers in 1471225 21,396 1,492 621
Transfers out (38,975) (1,472,478) (1,511,453)
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 1,432,250 (1,451,082) {18,832)
Change in fund balance 3,045,150 {169,704) 2,875,446
Fund Balance, at Beginning of Year 14,320,275 8,905,965 23,226,240
Fund Balance, at End of Year $ 17,365,425 $ 8,736,261 $ 26,101,686

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net changes in fund balances - total governmentali funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in

the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay

Depreciation

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position:

Repayments of debt

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financiai
resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for
various types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal
property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements.
This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue.

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health and
dental insurance activities. The net activity of internal service funds is
reported with governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reporied as
expenditures in the governmental funds:

Net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources
Net OPEB liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources
Other

Other differences

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES, AND EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues and Other Sources:
Property taxes
Excises
Penalties, interest and other taxes
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
fnvestment income
Miscellaneous
Transfers in
Use of free cash
Use of overlay surplus

Total Revenues and Other Sources

Expenditures and Other Uses:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public works
Human services
Culture and recreation
Employee benefits
Debt service
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Transfers out

Total Expenditures and Other Uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Criginal Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
$ 27,350,491 $ 27,350,491 $ 27,350,491 $ -
1,650,000 1,650,000 2,129,123 479,123
475,000 475,000 463,327 {11,673)
3,694,000 3,694,000 4,355,293 661,293
450,000 450,000 530,450 80,450
11,212,388 11,212,388 11,765,262 552,874
5,000 5,000 1,218 (3,782)
13,000 13,000 98,782 85,782
- - 283,008 283,008
2,516,457 2,516,457 2,802,478 286,021
3,140,453 3,231,605 3,231,605 -
300,000 300,000 300,000 -
50,806,789 50,897,941 53,311,037 2,413,096
3,504,258 3,490,565 3,088,189 402,376
7.069,296 7,142,696 7,072,515 70,181
22,005,696 22,008,802 21,705,448 301,354
2,940,355 2,942,355 2,817,995 124,360
1,845,169 1,852,314 1,578,392 273,922
1,202,829 1,218,195 1,160,547 57,648
8,194,015 8,194,015 7,801,339 392,676
1,247 337 1,243,782 1,189,255 54,527
411,381 411,381 434,872 (23,491)
- 9,383 6,587 2,796
2,386,453 2,386,453 2,386,453 -
50,806,789 50,897,941 49,241,592 1,656,349
$ - $ - $ 4,069,445 $ 4,069,445

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterments.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS

Current.
Cash and short-term investments
Investments
Deposits held by others

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

User fees
Special assessments
Intergovernmental

Total current assets

Noncurrent:

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

User fees
Special assessments
Capital assets:
Land and constructicn in progress
Other capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation

Tetal noncurrent assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Refated to pensions
Related to OPEB

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Notes payable
Other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable
Other

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent:
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Net pension liabifity
Net OPEB liability
Other, net of current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOCURCES
Related to pensions
Related to OPEB

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESQURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activites
Internal
Sewer Water Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
$ 3,769,716 $ 2,343,23% $ 6,112,947 $ 1,684,146
333,845 - 333,915 -
- - - 904,600
274,215 212,566 486,781
204,595 - 204,595
1,679,533 - 1,679,533
6,261,974 2,555,797 8,817,771 2,588,746
156,355 116,304 272,659
1,172,706 - 1,172,706 .
4,369,365 763,154 5,132,519
23,203,334 3,402,330 25,605,664
28,901,760 4281788 33,183,548
335,000 241,000 576,000 -
129 219 348 -
35,498,863 7,078,804 42 577,667 2,588,746
621,183 50111 571,204 459,717
36,196 20911 57,107 293,609
1,700,000 - 1,700,000 -
9,946 483 10,429 -
288,012 46,888 334,900 -
15,371 6,487 21,858 -
2,670,708 124,880 2,705 588 753,326
1,689,957 675,524 2,365,481 -
1,296,000 741,000 2,037,000 -
422 654 718,810 1,141,564 -
138,339 58,384 196,723 -
3,546,950 2,193,818 5,740,768 -
385,000 187.000 572,000 -
205,501 349,545 555,046 -
6,808,158 2,855,243 0,663 402 753,326
23,894,730 3,443,966 27,338,696 -
4,795,974 779,595 5,575,569 1,835,420
$ 28,650,704 S5 4223561 $ 32,914,265 $ 1,835420

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Transfers:

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services 4,924 006 $ 2,868,753 $ 7792759 $ -
Employee and employer contributions - - - 7,040,220
Special assessments 731,513 - 731,513 -
Other - 3,287 3,287 -
Total Operating Revenues 5,655,519 2,872,040 8,527,559 7,040,220
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 1,545,453 963,585 2,509,038 7,440,184
Other operating expenses 1,304,346 374,023 1,678,369 -
Depreciation 1,242,836 162,546 1,405,482 -
Intergovernmental assessments - 1,128,556 1,128,656 -
Total Operating Expenses 4,092,735 2,628,710 6,721,445 7.440,184
Operating Income (Loss) 1,562,784 243,330 1,806,114 (399,964)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income (3.651) 746 (2,905) 884
Interest expense {76,488) (14,986) (91,474) -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net {80,139) (14,240) (94,379) 884
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 1,482,645 229,090 1,711,735 (399,080)
Transfers in 17,579 1,253 18,832 -
Total transfers in (out) 17,579 1,253 18,832 -
Change in Net Position 1,500,224 230,343 1,730,567 (399,080)
Net Position at Beginning of Year, as restated 27,190,480 3,993,218 31,183,608 2,234,500
Net Position at End of Year $ 28,690,704 $ 4,223,561 $ 32914265 $ 1,835,420

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to vendors and employees

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers in

Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes
Principal payments on bonds and notes
Interest expense

Net Cash {Used For) Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Investments
Investment income

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Investing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Short-Term Investments

Cash and Short-Term Investments, Beginning of Year

Cash and Short-Term Investments, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income {Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by {Used For) Operating Activities:
Operating income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets, liabiliies, and deferred outflows/inflows:
User fees
Special assessments
Intergovernmental
Other receivables
Deferred outflows - related to pensions
Deferred outflows - related to OPEB
Accounts payable
Accrued liahilities
Other liabilities
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liahility
Deferred inflows - related to pensions
Deferred inflows - related to OPEB

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Internal
Sewer Water Service
Fund Fund Total Fund
$ 4265459 $ 2,891,858 $ 7157317 $ 7,040,220
{2,250,641) (2,412,377) (4,663,018) (7,571,348)
2,014,818 479 481 2,494,299 (531,128)
17,579 1,253 18,832
17,579 1,253 18,832
{2,617,407) (50,323) {2,667,730)
1,700,000 105 1,700,105
(295,730} (46,209} (341,939) -
(77,385) (15,394) {92,779) -
(1,290,522} (111,821) (1,402,343) -
(69,093) - {69,093) -
(3,651) 746 (2,905) 884
(72,744) 746 {71,998) 884
669,131 369,659 1,038,790 (530,244)
3,100,585 1,973,572 5,074,157 2,214,390
$ 3,769,716 § 234323 § 6,112,947 $ 1,684,146
$ 1,562,784 $ 243330 $ 1,806,114 $ {399,964)
1,242,936 162,546 1,405,482 -
37,762 17,073 54 835 -
254 011 2,262 256,273 -
{1,679,533) - {1,679,5633) -
447 - 447 -
95,000 {15,000) 80,000 -
{129} (219) (348) -
532,808 41,442 574,250 (106,741}
1,665 182 1,847 (24.423)
103,210 - 103,210 -
(458,000) {135,000) (593.000)
(214,644) (329,680) (544,324)
331,000 143,000 474,000
205,501 349,545 555,046
$ 2,014,818 $ 479,481 $ 2,494,209 $ (531,128)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments

investments:
Certificates of deposits
Federal agency securities
Corporate bonds
Corporate equities
Mutual funds
External investment pool

Total investments
Accounts receivable

Totat Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Warrants payable

Accrued liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted for pension purposes
Restricted for OPEB purposes
Restricted for other purposes

Total Net Position

JUNE 30, 2018

Pension
and OPEB

Trust Funds

179,716

319,443
192,561

63,062,783

63,674,787

138,231

63,892,734

63,378,883
513,851

63,892,734

Private
Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Fund
$ 380,895 $ 1,367,896
2,632
3,944
2,004
292 227
300,807
681,702 1,367,896
42,856
7,614
1,317,426
1,367,896
681,702 -
$ 681,702 3 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Pension Private
and OPEB Purpose
Trust Funds Trust Fund
Additions:
Contributions:
Employers $ 4457497 $ -
Plan members 1,349,123 -
Other systems and Commonwealth of Massachusetts 130,608 -
Other 28,173 16,500
Total contributions 5,965,401 16,500
Investment Income (Loss):
Investment income 15,348 8,861
Increase in fair value of investments 9,491,181 43,820
Less: management fees {305,870} -
Net investment income 9,200,659 52,681
Total additions 15,166,060 69,181
Deductions:
Benefit payments to plan members, beneficiaries,
and other systems 5671,719 -
Member refunds and transfers to other systems 191,990 -
Administrative expenses 94,289 -
Other - 19,423
Total deductions 5,857 998 19,423
Net increase 9,208,062 49,758
Net position restricted for pensions and other purposes:
Beginning of year 54,684,672 631,944
End of year $ 63,892,734 $ 681,702

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Fairhaven, Massachusetts (the Town)
conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board of Select-
men. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present the government and applicable component units for which
the government is considered to be financially accountable.

The Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System (the System) was estab-
lished to provide retirement benefits primarily to employees and their bene-
ficiaries. The System is presented using the accrual basis of accounting and
is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary fund financial statements.
Additional financial information for the System can be obtained by contacting
the System’s retirement administrator, located at Town of Fairhaven, 40 Center
Street, Fairhaven, MA 02719.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of inter-
fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activ-
ities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental reve-
nues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific func-
tion or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and con-
tributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital require-
ments of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, propri-
etary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from
the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate col-
umns in the fund financial statements.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility require-
ments imposed by the provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect
of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1} charges to customers
or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants
and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. internally dedicated resources are reported as general reve-
nues rather than as program revenues. l.ikewise, general revenues include all
taxes and excises.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current finan-
cial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of account-
ing. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the Town considers property tax revenues
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the government. Expenditures gen-
erally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, certain expenditures such as debt service, claims and judgments,
compensated absences, OPEB, and pension are recorded only when pay-
ment is due.

The Town reports the following major governmental fund:

e The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating rev-
enues of the enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and ser-
vices. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonop-
erating revenues and expenses.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

e The Sewer Fund is used to account for the Town’s sewer enterprise
fund operations.

e The Water Fund is used to account for the Town’s water enterprise
fund operations.

The self-insured medical and dental claims trust is reported as an /nternal
Service Fund in the accompanying financial statements.

The fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when liabilities are incurred.

The Town reports the following fiduciary funds:

e The Post-employment Benefits and OPEB Trust Funds are used to
accumulate resources for retiree post-employment benefits.

e The Private-Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for trust arrange-
ments, other than those properly reported in the permanent fund, under
which principal and investment income exclusively benefit individuals,
private organizations, or other governments.

e The Agency Fund accounts for fiduciary assets held by the Town in
a custodial capacity as an agent on behalf of others. Agency funds report
only assets and liabilities, and therefore, have no measurement focus.

D. Cash and Short-Term Investments

Cash balances from all funds, except those required to be segregated by law,
are combined to form a consolidation of cash. Cash balances are invested
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to the extent available, and interest earnings are recognized in the general
fund. Certain special revenue, proprietary, and fiduciary funds segregate cash,
and investment earnings become a part of those funds.

Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits, cer-
tificates of deposits, and savings accounts. A cash and investment pool is
maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s portion of this
pool is reflected on the combined financial statements under the caption “cash
and short-term investments”. The interest earnings attributable to each fund
type are included under investment income.

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be short-term
investments.

. Investments

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and
investments available. Deposits in any financial institution may not exceed
certain levels within the financial institution. Non-fiduciary fund investments
can be made in securities issued by or unconditionally guaranteed by the
U.S. Government or agencies that have a maturity of one year or less from
the date of purchase and repurchase agreements guaranteed by such secu-
rities with maturity dates of no more than 90 days from the date of purchase.

Investments for the Town's trust funds consist of marketable securities, bonds,
mutual funds, and certificates of deposit. Investments for the Contributory
Retirement System (Pension Trust) consist of pooled investments in the
State Pension Reserves Investment Trust (PRIT). Investments are carried
at fair value except certificates of deposit which are reported at cost.

. Property Tax Limilations

Legislation known as “Proposition 2%2” has limited the amount of revenue that
can be derived from property taxes. The prior fiscal year's tax levy limit is used
as a base and cannot increase by more than 2.5% (excluding new growth),
unless an override is voted. The actual fiscal year 2018 tax levy reflected an
excess capacity of $36,625.

. Interfund Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
either “due from/to other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)
or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund
loans).

27



Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate the portion not available for appro-
priation and not available as expendable financial resources.

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial state-
ments as “internal balances”.

. Capilal Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activi-
ties columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the Town as assets with an initial individual cost of more than
$20,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as pro-
jects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital
assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value
of the assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings 40 - 50

Improvements 20-40

Infrastructure 30-60

Machinery and equipment 5-10
Compensated Absences

It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick pay benefits. All vested sick and vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds financial state-
ments. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only
if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.
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J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position.

K. Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as
“fund balance”. Fund equity for all other reporting is classified as “net position”.

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between
the current assets/deferred outflows and current liabilities/deferred inflows.
The Town reserves those portions of fund balance that are legally segregated
for a specific future use or which do not represent available, spendable
resources and therefore, are not available for appropriation or expenditure.
Unassigned fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance that is avai-
lable for appropriation in future periods.

When an expenditure is incurred that would qualify for payment from multi-
ple fund balance types, the Town uses the following order to liquidate liabili-
ties: restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets/deferred
outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows. Net investment in capital assets con-
sists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the out-
standing balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when
there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legisla-
tion adopted by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The remaining net posi-
tion is reported as unrestricted.

L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures for contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic finan-
cial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenditures/
expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that
were used.
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2,

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgstary Information

At the annual town meeting, the Finance Committee presents an operating
and capital budget for the proposed expenditures of the fiscal year com-
mernicing the following July 1. The budget, as enacted by town meeting,
establishes the legal level of control and specifies that certain appropriations
are to be funded by particular revenues. The original budget is amended during
the fiscal year at special town meetings as required by changing conditions.
In cases of extraordinary or unforeseen expenses, the Finance Committee
is empowered to transfer funds from the reserve fund (a contingency appro-
priation) to a departmental appropriation. “Extraordinary” includes expenses
which are not in the usual line, or are great or exceptional. "Unforeseen”
includes expenses which are not foreseen as of the time of the annual meeting
when appropriations are voted.

Departments are limited to the line items as voted. Certain items may exceed
the line item budget as approved if it is for an emergency and for the safety of
the general public. These items are limited by the Massachusetts General
Laws and must be raised in the next year's tax rate.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device
during the year for the generai fund and proprietary funds.

At year-end, appropriation balances lapse, except for certain unexpended
capital items and encumbrances which will be honored during the subse-
quent year.

. Budgetary Basis

The general fund final appropriation appearing on the “Budget and Actual”
page of the fund financial statements represents the final amended budget
after all reserve fund transfers and supplemental appropriations.

C. Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

The budgetary data for the general fund is based upon accounting principles
that differ from generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Therefore, in
addition to the GAAP basis financial statements, the results of operations of
the general fund are presented in accordance with budgetary accounting
principles to provide a meaningful comparison to budgetary data.
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The following is a summary of adjustments made to the actual revenues and
other sources, and expenditures and other uses, to conform to the budget-
ary basis of accounting.

Revenues Expenditures
and Other and QOther
General Fund Financing Sources Financing Uses
Revenues/Expenditures
(GAAP Basis) $ 48,825475 $ 47,212,575
Other financing sources/uses
(GAAP Basis) 1,471,225 38,975
Subtotal (GAAP Basis) 50,296,700 47,251,550
Adjust tax revenue to accrual basis (433,007) -
Reverse beginning of year appropriation
carryforwards from expenditures - (1,541,941)
Add end-of-year appropriation
carryforwards from expenditures - 1,545,385
Record use of free cash 3,231,605 -
Record use of overlay surplus 300,000 -
Reverse effect of non-budgeted audit
adjustments (249,858) (249,855)
Reverse effect of combining stabilization
funds with general fund per GASB 54 165,597 2,236,453
Budgetary Basis $ 53,311,037 $ 49,241,592

D. Deficit Fund Equity

Certain individual funds reflected deficit balances as of June 30, 2018.

It is anticipated that the deficits in these funds will be eliminated through future
departmental revenues, grant revenues, and transfers from other funds.

Cash and Short-term Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may not be returned. Massachusetts
General Law Chapter 44, Section 55, limits the Town's deposits “in a bank or trust
company or banking company to an amount not exceeding sixty percent of the
capital and surplus of such bank or trust company or banking company, unless
satisfactory security is given to it by such bank or trust company or banking com-
pany for such excess.” Neither the Town nor the Contributory Retirement System
(System) has deposit policies for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2018, $3,965,051 of the Town’s bank balance of $30,079,530 was
exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured or uncollateralized.
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4.

Investments

A. Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill
its obligation to the holder of the investment. For short-term investments pur-
chased using surplus revenues, Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 44,
Section 55, limits the Town's investments to the top rating issued by at least
one nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSROs).

Presented below (in thousands) is the actual rating as of year-end for the
Town'’s investments. (All federal agency securities have an implied credit rating
of AAA)):

Minimum Rating as of Year-end
Legal Not
Investment Type Amount Rating AAA A3 Al BAAT BAA2 Rated
Ceitificates of deposits 5 1,701 N/A $ - g - $ - $ - $ - 1,701
Federal agency securities 2,550 N/A 2,550 - - - -
Corporate bonds 1,296 N/A - 757 244 231 64 -
Corporate equities 3,840 N/A - - - - - 3,840
Mutual funds 471 N/A - - - - - 471
External investment pool 63,063 N/A - - - - 63,063
Total investments 3 72921 $ 25850 $ 757 $ 244 $ 231 § 64 § 69075

Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 32, Section 23, limits the investment
of System funds, to the extent not required for current disbursements, in the
PRIT Fund or in securities, other than mortgages or collateral loans, which
are legal for the investment of funds in savings banks under the laws of the
Commonwealth, provided that no more than the established percentage of
assets is invested in any one security.

*Fair value is the same as the value of the pool share. The Pension Reserves investment
Trust was created under Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 32, Section 22, in December
1983. The Pension Reserves Investment Trust is operated under contract with a private
investment advisor, approved by the Pension Reserves Investment Management Board.
The Pension Reserves Investment Management Board shall choose an investment advisor
by requesting proposals from advisors and reviewing such proposals based on criteria
adopted under Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 308.

. Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a govern-
ment will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. Neither the Town nor
the System has policies for custodial credit risk.

All of the Town’s investments are subject to custodial credit risk exposure
because the related securities are uninsured, unregistered and/or held by the
Town's brokerage firm, which is also the Counterparty to these securities.
The Town manages this risk with SIPC and Excess SIPC coverage.
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C. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town places no limit on the amount the Town may investin any one issuer.
As of June 30, 2018, the Town held Vanguard equities that exceeded 5% of
total investments (other than U.S. treasuries, government agency securities,
and mutual funds).

Massachusetts General Law Chapter 32, Section 23 limits the amount the
System may invest in any one issuer or security type, with the exception of the
PRIT fund. Because all of the System’s investments are held in the PRIT Fund's
investment pool, concentration of credit risk cannot be readily determined.

D. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an
investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. Neither the Town nor the System has a formal investment policy
that limits investment maturities as a means of managing their exposure to fair
value losses arising from changing interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Town'’s investments
to market interest rate fluctuations is as follows:

Investment
Maturities
Less

Investment Type Amount Than 1 1-5 N/A
Certificates of deposits $ 1,701 $ 279 § 1422 §
Federal agency securities 2,550 701 1,849
Corporate bonds 1,296 - 1,296 -
Corporate equities 3,840 - - 3,840
Mutual funds 471 - - 471
External investment pool 63,083 - - 63,063
Total $ 72921 $ 980 $ 4567 $ 67,374

E. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Neither the Town nor the
System has policies for foreign currency risk.

F. Fair Value

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hier-
archy established by Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 72 Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASB 72). The hierarchy
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Leve! 2
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inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservabie inputs.

The Town has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018
except for the System’s investment in an external investment pool which
has a measurement date of December 31, 2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted prices

in active Significant Significant
markets for observable  unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description {Level 1) {Level 2} {Level 3)
investments by fair value level:
Debt securities:
Federal agency securities $ 2550 § - $ 2550 5
Corporate bonds 1,296 - 1,296
Equity securities:
Corporate equities 3,840 3,840 -
Mutual funds 471 471 - -
Investments measured at
the net asset value (NAV}):
External investment pool (System) 63,063 - - -
Total $ 71,220
D Redemption
Frequency Redempticn
Unfunded (If currently Notice
Description Value Commitments eligible) Period
External invesiment pool (System) $ 63,063 § - Monthly 30 days

Property Taxes and Excises Receivable

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed
on January 1 of every year. Assessed values are established by the Board of
Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are due on a
quarterly basis and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by
the respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they relate to.

The day after the final tax bill is due, a demand notice may be sent to the delin-
quent taxpayer. Fourteen days after the demand notice has been sent, the tax
collector may proceed to file a lien against the delinquent taxpayers’ property.
The Town has an ultimate right to foreclose on property for unpaid taxes. Per-
sonal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process.

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for every motor vehicle and
trailer registered in the Commonwealth. The Registry of Motor Vehicles annually
calculates the value of all registered motor vehicles for the purpose of excise
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assessment. The amount of motor vehicle excise tax due is calculated using a
fixed rate of $25 per $1,000 of value.

Boat excise taxes are assessed annually for all water vessels, including docu-
mented boats and ships, used or capable of being used for transportation on
water. Aboat excise is assessed by the community where the vessel is moored.
July 1is the assessing date for all vessels, and the boat excise due is calculated
using a fixed rate of $10 per $1,000 of value.

Property taxes and excise receivables at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Gross Allowance Net Amount

Amount for Doubtful (accrual

{fund basis) Accounts basis)

Real estate taxes $ 572130 % (46,364} § 525,766
Personal property taxes 50,447 (17,514) 32,933
Tax liens 1,253,578 (126,396) 1,127,182
Other 18,803 (14,200) 4,603
Total property taxes $ 1894058 $ (204474) 1,690,484
Less current portion 557,344
$ 1,133,140
Motor vehicle excise $ 302111 $  (113,596) § 188,515
Boat excise 14,613 (8,484) 6,129
Total excises $ 316,724 $ (122,080) $ 194,644

6. User Fee Receivables

Receivables for user charges at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Allowance
Gross for Doubtful Net
Amount Accounts Amount
Sewer $ 463,060 $ (32,490) $ 430570
Water 353,380 (24,510) 328,870
Waterways 16,833 (4,212) 12,621
Total $ 833273 § (61,212) $ 772,061

7. Departmental and Other Receivables

This balance consists primarily of ambulance charges and stop-loss adjust-
ments due from the Town’s health insurance carrier for medical claims in excess
of stop-loss limits in the Town's self-insured internal service fund.
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10.

1.

12.

Special Assessments Receivable

This balance represents Title V and sewer special assessment receivables.

Interqovernmental Receivables

This represents reimbursements requested from federal, state, and local
agencies for expenditures incurred in fiscal year 2018.

Interfund Transfers

The Town reports interfund transfers between various funds. Most transfers result
from budgetary or statutory actions, whereby funds are moved to accomplish vari-
ous expenditure purposes. The following is an analysis of major interfund transfers.

Governmental Funds: Transfers In Transfers Out
General fund $ 1471225 3 38,975
Nonmajor Funds:

Special revenue funds;

Recreation - 286,761
Ambutance - 1,013,203
Waterways 21,396 96,000
Other - 76,514
Subtotal - Nonmajor Funds 21,396 1,472.478
Business-Type Funds:
Sewer fund 17,579 -
Water fund 1,253 -
Subtotal - Business-Type 18,832 -
Total $ 1,511,453 $ 1,511,453

Of the transfers into the general fund, $286,761 was from the closing of the
recreation revolving fund. Transfers from ambulance receipts reserve for appro-
priation fund were to reimburse the general fund for EMT-related expenses. Of
the transfers out of the general fund, $17,579 was transferred to sewer enter-
prise and $1,253 was transferred to water enterprise fund to reclassify debt
service payments.

Deposits Held by Others

This balance represents the total working deposit held by the Town’s self-insured
health administrator for cngoing medical and dental claims.

Notes Receivable

This balance represents the outstanding balance of home rehabilitation loans
funded by Community Development Block Grants.
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13. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows (in

thousands):

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Governmental activilies capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and system
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and system
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Business-type activities capilal assets, net
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases  Balance
$ 67047 % - 8 - $ 67,047
13,879 1,602 - 15,481
5013 508 - 5519
32,058 1,388 - 33,446
117,997 3,496 - 121,493
(21,998) (1,628) - (23,626)
(5,349) (545) - (5,894)
(3,613) (329) (3,242)
(13,643) (947) - (14,590)
{44,603) (3,449) - (48,052)
73,394 47 - 73,441
22,184 - - 22,184
853 268 {762) 359
23,037 268 {762) 22,543

$ 96431 % 315 $ (762) § 95984
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases  Balance
$ 35707 % - 8 - $ 35707
22,787 557 - 23,344
3,686 72 - 3,758
62,180 629 62,809
{22,175) (580) (22,755)
(9,623) (747) (10,370
(3,000) (78) {3,078)
{34,798) {1,405) (36,203)
27,382 (776) 26,606
989 - - 989

2,105 2,595 {557) 4143
3,094 2,585 (5657) 5132

$ 30476 § 1819 $ (557) § 31738




14.

15.

16.

17.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Town as follows (in
thousands):

Governmenta! Activities:

General government $ 250
Public safety 195
Education 1,759
Public works 1,132
Culture and recreation 113
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,449

Business-Type Activities:

Sewer fund $ 1,243
Water fund 162
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1,405

Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net position by the
Town that is applicable to future reporting periods. Deferred outflows of resources
have a positive effect on net position, similar to assets. Deferred outflows of
resources related to pensions and OPEB, in accordance with GASB Statements
No. 68 and 75, are more fully discussed in the corresponding pension and OPEB
notes.

Warrants and Accounts Payable

Warrants payable represent 2018 expenditures paid by July 15, 2018. Accounts
payable represent additional 2018 expenses paid after the close of the fiscal year.

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist primarily of year-end payroll and withholdings, self-
insured health and dental claims incurred but not yet recorded, and accrued
interest on long-term debt.

Tax Refunds Payable

This balance consists of an estimate of refunds due to property taxpayers for
potential abatements. These cases are currently pending with the state Appellate
Tax Board.
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18.

19.

Notes Payable

The Town had the following notes outstanding at June 30, 2018:

Interest Date of Date of Balance at
Rate Issue Maturity 6/30/18
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer 2.15% 06/26/18 07/27/18 ° $ 1,700,000
Total $ 1,700,000

*Subsequent to maturity this note was bonded. See Note 29.

The following summarizes activity in notes payable during fiscal year 2018:

Balance Balance
Beginning New End of
of Year Issues Year
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer $ - $ 1,700,000 $ 1,700,000
Total $ - $ 1,700,000 $ 1,700,000

Long-Term Debt

A. General Obligation Bonds

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been
issued for both governmental and business-type activities. General obliga-

tion bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Amount
Serial Outstanding
Maturities Interest as of
Governmental Activities: Through Rate(s) % 6/30/18

Elementary school MSBA 11/01/18 2.0% $ 148,714
Elementary school 1101/33 3.0-4.0% 7,240,000
High school - refunding 12115124  2.0-5.0% 326,000
Elementary and high school - refunding 03/15/27 2.0-3.0% 1,730,000
Total Governmental Activities $ 9,444,714
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Business-Type Activities:

Sewer - Boulder Park MWPAT

Sewer - Title V MWPAT
Sewer - Title V MWPAT

Sewer - USDA Rural Development

Sewer Digester

Sewer - Nancy Street refunding

Sewer - UV Disinfection refunding
Sewer - Sconticut Neck refunding
Water - Boston Hill Water Tank

Water - MCWT Boston Hill Water Tank

Total Business-Type Activities

B. Future Debt Service

Amount
Serial Outstanding
Maturities Interest as of

Through Rate(s) % 6/30/18
08/01/18 4.0-52% & 20,900

08/01/18 0.0% 10,868
02/01/21 0.0% 20,269
02/02/26 4.5% 117,180
01/15/33 2.0% 564,752
121151198 2.0-5.0% 9,000
12/15/24  2.0-50% 487,000
121157124  2.0-5.0% 748,000
11/01/22  3.0-4.0% 75,000
07/15/35 2.0% 647,412

$ 2,700,381

The annual payments to retire all general obligation long-term debt outstanding
as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Governmental

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024 - 2028
2029 - 2034
Thereafter

Total

Business-Type
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024 - 2028
2029 - 2034
Thereafter

Total

Principal Interest Total
$ 855714 % 282,786 % 1,138,500
707,000 261,988 968,988
702,000 244 162 046,162
697,000 225770 922,770
692,000 206,810 898,810
3,091,000 742 565 3,833,565
2,250,000 208 688 2.548,688
450,000 9,000 459,000
$ 9444714 $ 2271769 $ 11,716,483
Principal Interest Total
$ 3349000 $ 75526 $ 410,426
300,168 63,199 363,367
292,401 51,193 343,594
284 602 41,294 325,896
269,931 33,477 303,408
714,098 90,807 804,905
415,275 34174 449 449
89,006 2,680 91,686
$ 2700381 $ 392350 % 3,092,731
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C. Changes in General Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in
long-term liabilities (in thousands):

Equals
Total Total Less Long-Term
Balance Balance Current Portion

nny Additions Reductions  6/30/18 Portion 6/30/18

Governmental Activities

Bonds payable $ 10306 % - $ (861) $§ 9445 § (856) § 8,589
Net pension liability 18,870 - (3,954) 14,916 - 14,916
Net OPEB liability 19,364 11,227 - 30,591 - 30,591
Other:
Landfill liability 325 - {25) 300 (25) 275
Compensated absences 1,132 414 {16) 1,530 (153) 1,377
Special termination benefits 144 - (69) 75 (75) -
Subtotal - other 1,601 414 (110) 1,905 (253) 1,662
Totals $ 50141 §_ 11641 $_(4925) $ 56857 $_(1109) §_ 55748
Business-Type Activities
Bonds payable $ 3042 3% - $ (342) $§ 2700 $ (335 § 2,365
Net pension liabitity 2,630 - (593) 2,037 - 2,037
Net OPEB liahility 1,891 - (749) 1,142 - 1,142
Other:
Compensated absences 78 141 - 219 (22} 197
Totals § 7641 % 141 §_(1684) § 6098 $_ (357) $_ 5741

Landfill Post-Closure Care Costs

State and Federal laws and regulations require the Town to perform certain main-
tenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure.

The $300,000 reported as landfill postclosure care liability at June 30, 2018 repre-
sents the estimated future monitoring costs of the Town's former landfill, which
was closed and capped in 1999. These costs will be captured annually as part
of the Town’s budget. Actual cost may be higher than estimated due to inftation,
changes in technology, or changes in reguiations.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources are the acquisition of net position by the Town that
are applicable to future reporting periods. Deferred inflows of resources have a
negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities. Deferred inflows of resources
related to pension and OPEB will be recognized as expense in future years and
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22.

is more fully described in the corresponding pension and OPEB notes. Unavail-
able revenues are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet in connection
with receivables for which revenues are not considered available to liquidate lia-
bilities of the current year.

Governmental Funds - Balances

Fund balances are segregated to account for resources that are either not avail-
able for expenditure in the future or are legally set aside for a specific future use.

The Town has implemented GASB Statement No. 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which enhances the use-
fulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifica-
tions that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying existing governmental
fund type definitions.

The following types of fund balances are reported at June 30, 2018:

Nonspendable - Represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be main-
tained intact. This fund balance classification includes nhonmajor governmental
funds reserves for the principal portion of permanent trust funds.

Restricted - Represents amounts that are restricted to specific purposes by
constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provi-
sions or enabling legislation. This fund balance classification includes the unspent
balance of capital projects funded by bond issuances, various special revenue
funds, and the income portion of permanent trust funds.

Committed - Represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Town’s highest level of
decision-making authority. This fund balance classification includes general fund
encumbrances for non-lapsing special article appropriations approved at Town
Meeting.

Assigned - Represents amounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to
use these resources for a specific purpose as established by management.
This fund balance classification includes general fund encumbrances that have
been established by various Town departments for the expenditure of current
year budgetary financial resources upon vendor performance in the subsequent
budgetary period, fund balance voted to be used for the subsequent year's budget,
and funds reserved by Town management for future debt service payments.

Unassigned - Represents amounts that are available to be spent in future periods.
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23.

The following is a breakdown of the Town's fund balances at June 30, 2018:

Nonmajor Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable
Nonexpendable permanent funds $ - $ 2645413 $ 2645413
Total Nonspendable - 2,645,413 2,645413
Restricted
Bonded projects - 53,677 53,677
Special revenue funds - 5,891,971 5,891,971
Expendable permanent funds - 395,682 395,682
Total Restricted - 6,341,330 6,341,330
Committed
Carryover articles 1,283,137 - 1,283,137
Ambulance stabilization 52,405 - 52,405
Capital stabilization 2,312,164 - 2,312,164
Special education reserve stabilization 386,554 - 386,554
Total Committed 4,034,260 - 4,034,260
Assigned
Encumbrances 320,839 - 320,839
Reserve for expenditure 2,543,818 - 2,543,818
Future debt service 107,357 - 107,357
Total Assigned 2,972,014 - 2,972,014
Unassigned
Stabilization funds 2,951,046 - 2,951,046
Undesignated 7,408,105 - 7.408,105
Special revenue fund deficits - {250,482) (250,482)
Total Unassigned 10,359,151 {250,482} 10,108,669
Total Fund Balance $ 17365425 $ 8,736,261 $ 26,101,686

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance

The unassigned general fund balance reported on the balance sheet is stated
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), which differs
in certain respects from the Massachusetts Uniform Municipal Accounting System
(UMAS). The following paragraphs summarize the maijor differences.

Massachusetts general laws include provisions to allow municipalities to over
expend certain appropriations if they are incurred in an emergency situation and
for the safety of the public. The most common example involves the "snow and
ice” appropriation. All such overexpenditures, however, must be funded in the
subsequent year's tax rate.
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24,

The accompanying financial statements include an estimate for future potential
tax refunds, which is not recognized under UMAS.

The following summarizes the specific differences between GAAP basis and
budgetary basis of reporting the general fund unassigned fund balance:

GAAP basis balance $ 10,359,151

General stabilization (2,951,046)

Tax refund estimate 84,287
Statutory (UMAS) Balance $ 7,492392

Retirement System

The Town follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27,
with respect to the employees’ retirement funds.

A. Plan Description

Substantially all employees of the Town (except teachers and administrators
under contract employed by the School Department) are members of the
Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System (the System), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer public employee retirement system (PERS). Eligible
employees must participate in the System. The pension plan provides pension
benefits, deferred allowances, and death and disability benefits. Chapter 32
of the Massachusetts General Laws establishes the authority of the System,
contribution percentages, and benefits paid. The System Retirement Board
does not have the authority to amend benefit provisions Additional informa-
tion is disclosed in the System’s annual financial reports, which are publicly
available at the System'’s administrative offices at 40 Centre Street, Fairhaven,
Massachusetts 02719.

Participant Retirement Benefits

The System provides for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of
80% of a member's highest 3-year average annual rate of regular compen-
sation for those hired prior to Aprit 2, 2012 and the highest five-year average
annual rate of regular compensation for those first becoming members of
the Massachusetts System on or after that date. However, per Chapter 176
of the Acts of 2011, for members who retire on or after April 2, 2012, if in the
5 years of creditable service immediately preceding retirement, the difference
in the annual rate of regular compensation between any 2 consecutive years
exceeds 100 percent, the normal yearly amount of the retirement allowance
shall be based on the average annual rate of regular compensation received
by the member during the period of 5 consecutive years preceding retirement.
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Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable ser-
vice, level of compensation and group classification.

If a participant was a member prior to February 1, 2012, a retirement allow-
ance may be received at any age, upon attaining 20 years of service. The
plan also provides for retirement at age 55 if the participant was a member
prior to January 1, 1978, with no minimum vesting requirements. If the par-
ticipant was a member on or after January 1, 1978 and a member of Groups 1
or 2, then a retirement allowance may be received if the participant (1) has
at least 10 years of creditable service, (2} is age 55, (3) voluntarily left Town
employment on or after that date, and (4) left accumulated annuity deductions
in the fund. Members of Group 4, have no minimum vesting requirements,
however, must be at least age 55. Groups 2 and 4 require that participants
perform the duties of the Group position for at least 12 months immediately
prior to retirement.

A participant who became a member on or after April 2, 2012 is eligible for
a retirement allowance upon 10 years creditable service and reaching ages 60
or 55 for Groups 1 and 2, respectively. Participants in Group 4 must be at
least age 55. Groups 2 and 4 require that participants perform the duties of
the Group position for at least 12 months immediately prior to retirement.

A retirement allowance consists of two parts: an annuity and a pensicn. A
member's accumulated total deductions and a portion of the interest they
generate constitute the annuity. The difference between the total retirement
allowance and the annuity is the pension. The average retirement benefit is
approximately 80-85% pension and 15-20% annuity.

Participant Refunds

Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a
retirement allowance are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated
total deductions. Members voluntarily withdrawing with at least 10 years of
service or involuntarily withdrawing, receive 100% of the regular interest
that has accrued on those accumulated total deductions. Members volun-
tarily withdrawing with less than 10 years of service get credited interest
each year at a rate of 3%.

Participants Contributions

Participants contribute a set percentage of their gross regular compensation
annually. Employee contribution percentages are specified in Chapter 32 of
the Massachusetts General Laws. The employee’s individual contribution
percentage is determined by their date of entry into the system. In addition,
all employees hired on or after January 1, 1979 contribute an additional 2%
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on all gross regular compensation over the rate of $30,000 per year. The
percentages are as follows:

Before January 1, 1975 5%
January 1, 1975 - December 31, 1983 7%
January 1, 1984 - June 30, 1996 8%
Beginning July 1, 1996 9%

For those members entering a Massachusetts System on or after April 2,
2012 in Group 1, the contribution rate will be reduced to 6% when at least
30 years of creditable service has been attained.

Emplover Contributions

Employers are required to contribute at actuarially determined rates as accepted
by the Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC).

The Town's contribution to the System for the year ended June 30, 2018 was
$2,946,801, which was equal to its required contribution.

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the System, and
additions to/deductions from the System’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the System. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Invest-
ments are reported at fair value.

. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Quiflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related fo Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the Town reported a liability of $16,953,000 for its propor-
tionate share of the System’s total net pension liability. The net pension
liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the total pension liabil-
ity used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of January 1, 2018. The Town’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on an actuarially determined projection of the Town’s
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2017, the Town's
proportion was 96.96%.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Town recognized total pension expense
of $3,644,000. In addition, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources
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and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Quitflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience 3 - $ 1,545,000
Changes of assumptions 4,165,000 -
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 2,472,000
Changes in proportion and differences
between contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 159,000 127,000
Total $ 4,324,000 $ 4,145,000

Amounts reported as deferred outfiows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year ended June 30:

2019 $ 484,000
2020 490,000
2021 (217,000)
2022 (599,000)
2023 21,000

Total $ 179,000

D. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
January 1, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement that was updated to a measurement date of
December 31, 2017:

Valuation date January 1, 2018

Actuarial cost methods Entry Age Normal Cost

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.25%
Projected salary increases 4.25% for Group 1 and 4.75% for Group 4
Inflation rate Not explicitly assumed

Post-retirement cost-of-living adjustment 3% of first $14,000

Mortality rates were based on:

» Pre-Retirement Mortality: RP-2000 Employees Mortality Table projected
generationally with scale BB and a base year 2009 {(gender distinct).
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o Post-Retirement Mortality; RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table pro-
jected generationally with scale BB and a base year 2009 (gender distinct).

¢ Disabled Mortality. RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Table projected genera-
tionally with Scale BB and a base year 2012 (gender distinct).

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage adjusted by a 3.00% inflation assumption. Best esti-
mates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included
in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of January 1, 2018 are sum-
marized in the following table:
Long-term
Target Expected
Asset Real Rate

Agset Class Allocation  of Return
Large Cap Equities 14.50% 7.50%
Small’Mid Cap Equities 3.50% 7.75%
Int'l Equities 16.00% 7.80%
Emerging Int'l Equities 6.00% 9.30%
Core Bonds 5.00% 3.75%
20+ Yr. Treasury STRIPS 2.00% 3.50%
TIPS 5.00% 3.75%
High-Yield Bonds 1.50% 5.50%
Bank Loans 2.50% 5.50%
EMD (External) 1.00% 5.00%
EMD (Local Currency) 0.00% 6.50%
Distressed Debt 3.00% 8.80%
Other Credit Opportunities 2.00% 6.50%
Private Equity 11.00% 9.50%
Real Estate 10.00% 6.70%
Timberland 4.00% 6.25%
Hedge Funds & Portfolio Completion 13.00% 6.40%
Total 100.00%

E. Discount Rale

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan
member contributions at the current contribution rate and employer contribu-
tions at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’'s fiduciary net position was pro-
jected to be avaitable to make all projected future benefit payments to current
active and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
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return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

F. Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Changes
in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the
Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.25%) or
1 percentage-point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:

Current
Discount 1%
1% Decrease Rate Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

$ 25,883,472 $ 16,953,000 $ 9385728

G. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is avail-
able in the separately issued System financial report.

25. Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS)

A. Plan Description

The Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS) is a public employee
retirement system (PERS) that administers a cost-sharing, multi-employer
defined benefit plan, as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans. MTRS is
managed by the Commonwealth on behalf of municipal teachers and munic-
ipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and
is responsible for all contributions and future benefit requirements of the
MTRS. The MTRS covers certified teachers in cities (except Boston), towns,
regional school districts, charter schools, educational collaboratives, and
Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealth’s reporting entity
and does not issue a stand-alone audited financial report.

Management of MTRS is vested in the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retire-
ment Board (MTRB), which consists of seven members—two elected by the
MTRS members, one who is chosen by the six other MTRB members, the
State Treasurer (or their designee), the State Auditor (or their designee), a
member appointed by the Governor, and the Commissioner of Education (or
their designee), who serves ex-officio as the Chairman of the MTRB.
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B. Benefits Provided

MTRS provides retirement, disability, survivor, and death benefits to mem-
bers and their beneficiaries. Massachusetts General Laws (MGL} establish
uniform benefit and contribution requirements for all contributory PERS. These
requirements provide for superannuation retirement allowance benefits up
to a maximum of 80% of a member’s highest three-year average annual rate
of regular compensation. For employees hired after April 1, 2012, retirement
allowances are calculated on the basis of the last five years or any five con-
secutive years, whichever is greater in terms of compensation. Benefit pay-
ments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable service, and group
creditable service and group classification. The authority for amending these
provisions rests with the Legislature.

Members become vested after ten years of creditable service. A superannua-
tion retirement allowance may be received upon the completion of twenty years
of creditable service or upon reaching the age of 55 with ten years of service.
Normal retirement for most employees occurs at age 65. Most employees who
joined the system after April 1, 2012 cannot retire prior to age 60.

The MTRS' funding policies have been established by Chapter 32 of the MGL.
The Legislature has the authority to amend these policies. The annuity portion
of the MTRS retirement allowance is funded by employees who contribute a
percentage of their regular compensation. Costs of administering the plan are
funded out of plan assets.

C. Contributions

Member contributions for MTRS vary depending on the most recent date of
membership:

Membership Date % of Compensation

Prior to 1975 5% of regular compensation

1975 - 1983 7% of reguiar compensation

1984 to 6/30/1996 8% of regular compensation

7/1/1996 to present 9% of regular compensation

7/1/2001 to present 11% of regular compensation (for teachers

hired after 7/1/01 and those accepting provi-
sions of Chapter 114 of the Acts of 2000)

1979 to present An additional 2% of regular compensation in
excess of $30,000

50



D. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was deter-
mined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017 rolled forward to
June 30, 2017. This valuation used the following assumptions;

e (a) 7.50% investment rate of return, (b) 3.50% interest rate credited to the
annuity savings fund and (c) 3.00% cost of living increase on the first
$13,000 per year.

e Salary increases are based on analyses of past experience but range
from 4.00% to 7.50% depending on length of service.

o Experience study is dated July 21, 2014 and encompasses the period
January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2011.

» Mortality rates were as follows:

— Pre-retirement - reflects RP-2014 White Collar Employees table pro-
jected generationally with Scale MP-2016 (gender distinct).

- Post-retirement - reflects RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant table
projected generationally with Scale MP-2016 (gender distinct).

— Disability — assumed to be in accordance with RP-2014 Healthy Annu-
itant table projected generationally with scale BB and a base year of
2014 set forward 4 years.

Investment assets of the MTRS are with the Pension Reserves Investment
Trust (PRIT) Fund. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage. Best estimates of geometric rates of
return for each major asset class included in the PRIT Fund’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Global equity 40.00% 5.00%
Portfolio completion strategies 13.00% 1.10%

Core fixed income 12.00% 6.60%
Private equity 11.00% 3.60%

Real estate 10.00% 3.80%
Value added fixed income 10.00% 3.60%
Timber/natural resources 4.00% 3.20%
Hedge funds 0.00% 3.60%

Total 100.00%
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E. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rates and
the Commonwealth's contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rates.
Based on those assumptions, the net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. There-
fore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pen-
sion liability.

F. Sensitivity Analysis

The following illustrates the sensitivity of the collective net pension liability
to changes in the discount rate. In particular, the table presents the MTRS
collective net pension liability assuming it was calculated using a single dis-
count rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-point higher
than the current discount rate (amounts in thousands):

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
to 6.50% Rate 7.50% to 8.50%
$ 28,424,300 $ 22,885,391 $ 18,193,400

G. Special Funding Situation

The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute
to make all actuarial determined employer contributions on behalf of the
member employers. Therefore, these employers are considered to bein a
special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68) and the Commonwealth is
a nonemployer contributing entity in MTRS. Since the employers do not con-
tribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize for each
employer.

H. Town Proportions

In fiscal year 2017 (the most recent measurement period), the Town’s pro-
portionate share of the MTRS' collective net pension liability and pension
expense was $40,992,054 and $4,278,460 respectively, based on a propor-
tionate share of 0.179119%. As required by GASB 68, the Town has recog-
nized its portion of the Commonwealth’s contribution as both a revenue and
expenditure in the general fund, and its portion of the collective pension
expense as both a revenue and expense in the governmental activities.
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26.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (GASB 74 and GASB 75)

GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans
Other Than Pension Plans (OPEB), replaces the requirements of Statement No. 43,
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension
Plans. This applies if a trust fund has been established to fund future OPEB
costs. In fiscal year 2012, the Government established an OPEB Trust Fund to
provide funding for future employee health care costs.

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemploy-
ment Benefits Other Than Pensions, replaces the requirements of Statement
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. The Statement establishes standards for recog-
nizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows
of resources, and expense/expenditures. This Statement identifies the methods
and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, dis-
counted projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute
that present value to periods of employee service.

All the following OPEB disclosures are based on a measurement date of June 30,
2018.

A. General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description

The Town provides post-employment healthcare benefits for retired employees
through the Town's plan. The Town provides health insurance coverage
through Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Massachusetts. The benefits, benefit
levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by
Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws.

Benefits Provided

The Town provides medical and prescription drug insurance to retirees and
their covered dependents. All active employees who retire from the Town
and meet the eligibility criteria will receive these benefits.

Plan Membership

At July 1, 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries

currently receiving benefit payments 316
Active employees 387
Total 703
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B. Investments
The OPEB trust fund assets consist of mutual funds.

Rate of return. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the annual money-weighted
rate of return on investments, net of investment expense, was 3.98 percent.
The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net
of investment expense, adjusted for changing amounts actually invested.

C. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases 3%, average, including inflation

Investment rate of return 6.86%, net of CPEB plan investment
expense

Municipal bond rate 3.45%

Discount rate 7.00%

Healthcare cost trend rates 5% for 2018

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs 40% of medical premiums, 50% of dental
premiums, and 45% of life insurance
premiums

Mortality rates were based on:

e Pre-Retirement Mortality: RP-2000 Employees Mortality Table pro-
jected generationally with scale BB and a base year 2009 for males
and females

» Post-Retirement Mortality: RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table
projected generationally with scale BB and a base year 2009 for males
and females

» Disabled Mortality: RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table pro-
jected generationally with Scale BB and a base year 2012 for males
and females

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study as of January 1, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was deter-
mined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are com-
bined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
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and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as
of June 30, 2018 are summarized in the following table.

Target Long-term
Asset Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Domestic Equity - Large Cap 22.50% 4.00%
Domestic Equity - Small/Mid Cap 11.25% 8.00%
International Equity - Developed Market 11.50% 4.50%
International Equity - Emerging Market 5.75% 7.00%
Domestic Fixed Income 24.25% 2.00%
International Fixed Income 6.00% 3.00%
Alternatives 18.50% 6.50%
Real estate 0.00% 6.25%
Cash 0.25% 0.00%
Total 100.00%

D. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the net OPEB liability was 7.00%. The pro-
jection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that con-
tributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate.

Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan fiduciary net position was pro-
jected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members.

E. Net OPEB Liability

The components of the net OPEB liability, measured as of June 30, 2018,
were as follows:

Total OPEB liability $ 32,246,053
Plan fiduciary net position 513,851
Net OPEB liability $ 31,732,202

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB liability 1.58%
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F. Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Plan
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balances, beginning of year $ 48194393 % 347072 $ 47,847,321
Changes for the year:
Service cost 724,378 - 724,378
Interest 3,380,596 - 3,380,596
Contributions - employer - 1,420,582 (1,420,582)
Net investment income - 16,779 (16,779)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs (18,782,732) - (18,782,732)
Benefit payments {1,270,582) (1,270,582) -
Net Changes (15,948,340) 166,779 (16,115,119)
Balances, end of year 3 32,246,053 % 513,851 $ 31,732,202

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate
from 4.00 percent in 2016 to 7.00 percent in 2018.

G. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current dis-
count rate:

Current
1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

$ 36,109,292 §$ 31732202 $ 27,355112

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that
are one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point higher than the
current healthcare cost trend rates:

Current
Healthcare
1% Cost Trend 1%
Decrease Rates Increase

$ 25236026 $ 31732202 § 39,777,457
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27.

I, OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows

of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Town recognized an OPEB expense
of $696,118. At June 30, 2018, the Town reported deferred inflows and outflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Change in assumptions

Net difference between projected and

actual OPEB investment earnings

Total

Deferred Deferred
QOutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
3 - 3 15428673

9,672 -

$ 9672 $ 15428673

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:

2019 5 3,351,641
2020 3,351,641
2021 3,351,641
2022 3,351,641
2023 2,012,437
Total $ 15,419,001

Pension and OPEB Trust Funds

The Fairhaven Contributory Retirement System and the OPEB Trust Fund are
presented in a single column in the accompanying fiduciary fund financial state-
ments. Details of the financial position and changes in net position are as follows:

ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments
Investments;

Corporate equities

Mutual funds

External investment pool

Total investments
Accounts receivable
Total Assets

NET POSITION
Restricted for pension purposes
Restricted for OPEB purposes

Cther
Pensian Post-Employment Pension

Trust Fund Benefits Trust and OPEB
{December 31, 2017) Fund Trust Funds
$ 177 869 $ 1,847 $ 179,716
319,443 319,443

- 192 561 192,561
63,062,783 - 63,062,783
63,062,783 512,004 63,574,787
138,231 - 138,231

$ 63,378,883 $ 513,851 $ 63,892,734

$ 63378883

$ 63,378,883 $ -
- 513,851 513,851

$ 63,378,883 $ 513,851 $ 63892734
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28.

Additions:
Contributions:
Employers
Plan members
Other systems and Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Other

Total contributions

Investment income (Loss):
Investment income
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments
Less: management fees

Net investment income
Total additions

Deductions:
Benefit payments o plan members, beneficiaries,
and other systems
Member refunds and transfers to other systems
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Net increase

Net position restricted for pensions and other purposes:

Beginning of year
End of year

Self-lnsurance

Pension Other

Trust Fund Post-Employment Pension
(year ended Benefits Trust and OPEB
December 31, 2017) Fund Trust Funds
$ 3036915 $ 1,420,582 $ 4,457,497
1,349,123 - 1,349,123
130,608 - 130,608
28,173 - 28,173
4,544 819 1,420,582 5,965,401

. 15,348 15,348
9,489,750 1,431 9,491,181
(305,870) - (305,870
9,183,880 16,779 9,200,659
13,728,699 1,437,361 15,166,060
4,401,137 1,270,582 5671,719
191,990 - 191,990
94,289 - 94,289
4,687,416 1,270,582 5,957,998
9,041,283 166,779 9,208,062
54,337,600 347,072 54,684,672

$ 63378882 $ 513,851 $ 63892734

The Town self-insures against claims for employee health coverage. Annual esti-
mated requirements for claims are provided in the Town’s annual operating budget.

Health Insurance

The Town contracts with an insurance carrier for excess liability coverage and an
insurance consultant for claims processing. Under the terms of its insurance cov-
erage, the Town is liable for claims up to $90,000 per individual. The claims liability
represents an estimate of claims incurred but unpaid at year-end, based on
past historical costs and claims paid subsequent to year-end.
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Changes in the aggregate liability for claims for the year ended June 30, 2018
are as follows:
Health

Coverage
Claims liabiiity, beginning of year $ 318,032

Claims incurred/recognized

in fiscal year 2018 7,440,184
Claims paid in fiscal year 2018 (7,464,607)
Claims liability, end of year $ 293,609

Subsequent Events

Debt

Subsequent to June 30, 2018, the Town has incurred the following additional
debt:
Interest Issue Maturity
Amount Rate Date Date

General obligationbond $ 8,290,000 3-5%  07/25/18  06/30/39

Commitments and Contingencies

Qutstanding Legal Issues - On an ongoing basis, there are typically pending
legal issues in which the Town is involved. The Town's management is of the
opinion that the potential future settlement of these issues would not materially
affect its financial statements taken as a whole.

Grants - Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to
audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount of expenditures which may be dis-
allowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Town
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Commitments - The Town built a sewer treatment plant several years ago that
met the environmental pollutant discharge regulations at the time, however,
poliutant discharge regulations have since changed. When the Town applied
for a license renewal, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) agreed to renew the license if
improvements were made to reduce the amount of nitrogen discharged. The
Town, EPA, and DEP have agreed upon a plan to reduce the amount nitrogen
discharged from the Plant. The plan will involve planning, design and capital
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32,

improvements that will commence in FY2019 and be completed by 2026 at an
estimated total cost of $25 million to be funded by future debt borrowings.

Leases

The Town is the lessor in an agreement with Southeastern Massachusetts Edu-
cational Collaborative to lease the Tripp School building. The lease agreement
is for a term of five years beginning November 1, 2016 and terminating on
October 31, 2021. Following is the future minimum rental income to be received
by the Town under the terms of this lease for the year ending June 30:

2019 $ 37,209
2020 37,954
2021 38,712
2022 12,989
Total $ 126,864

Bedginning Net Position Restatement

The beginning (July 1, 2017) net position of the Town has been restated as
follows:

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Governmental
Activities Business-Type Activities
Sewer Water Total
As previously reported $ 80731092 $ 26,532,387 $ 4481406 § 31,013,793
Implementation of GASB 75 CPEB (26,762,112) 658,093 {488,188) 169,805
As restated $ 53968080 $ 27190480 $ 3993218 $ 31,183,698
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

SCHEDULE OF PROPCRTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (GASB 68}

JUNE 30, 2018
{Unaudited)

Fairbaven Contributory Retirerent System

Proportion  Proportionate

of the Share of the Proportionate Share of the Plan Fiduciary Nat Position
Fiscal Measurement Net Pension  Net Pension Net Pensicn Liability as a Percentage of the Total
Year Date Liability Liability Covered Payroll Percentage of Covered Payrolf Pension Liability
June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017 96.96% $16,953,000 $ 11,413,162 148 54% 78.40%
June 30, 2017 December 31, 2016 96.71% $21,500,000 $ 10,759,955 199.81% 71.00%
June 30, 2016 Decamber 3%, 2015 96.56% $18,463,000 $ 10,200,598 181.00% 72.70%
June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014 96.46% $16,607,000 $ 10,190,034 162.97% 75.4%%

Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement Systemn

Commonweatth of Total Net Proportionate
Massachusetts' Total Pensicn Share of the Pian Fiduciary
Proportien  Proportionate  Proportionate Share Liability Net Pension Net Position

of the Share ofthe  of the Net Pension Associated Liability as a Percentage of

Fiscal Measurement Net Pension  Net Pension  Liability Associated with the Percentage of the Total
Year Date Liability Liability with the Town Town Covered Payroll Covered Payroll  Pension Liability

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 0.479118% - $ 40,992 054 $ 40,992054 % 12,463 048 - 54.25%
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 0.476155% - § 39,384,609 § 39384609 § 11,586,868 - 52.73%
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 0.180847% - § 37,054,975 $ 37054975 § 11,463689 - 55.38%
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 0.184015% - § 29251667 $ 29,251,667 $ 11,282,869 - 61.64%

Schedules are intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they bacome available.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS (GASB 68)

JUNE 30, 2018
(Unaudited)

Fairhaven Contributery Retirement System

Contributions in
Relation to the

Contractually Contractually Contribution Contributions as
Fiscal Measurement Required Required Deficiency Covered a Percentage of
Year Date Contribution  Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
June 30,2018  December 31, 2017 § 2,946,801 § 2,946,801 § - $ 11,413,162 25.82%
June 30,2017  December 31,2016 $ 2,799,586 $ 2,859,586 §$ (60,000) $§ 10,759,955 26.58%
June 30,2016  December 31,2015 § 2,662,396 §$ 2,679,322 $ (16926) $§ 10,200,598 26.27%
June 30,2015  December 31,2014 § 2,533,204 § 2,533,204 § - $ 10,190,034 24.86%
Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System
Contractually Contributions in
Required  Relation to the
Contribution  Contractually Contribution Contributions as
Fiscal Measurement Provided by Required Deficiency Covered a Percentage of
Year Date Commonwealth Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 $ 2293041 % 2213041 § - $ 12,163,018 18.19%
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 $ 1,981,008 $ 1981009 $ - $ 11,586,868 17.10%
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2015 $ 1,848,133 $ 1848133 $ - $ 11,463,689 16.12%
June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 $ 1724918 § 1724918 $ - $ 11,282,889 15.29%

Schedules are intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (GASB 74 and 75)

(Unaudited)

Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest on unfunded liability - time value of $
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer

Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)
Net OPEB liability (asset) - ending (a-b)

018 2017
724,378 1,696,309
3,380,586 1,763,894
(18,782,732) -
(1,270,582) (1,202,254)
{15,948,340) 2,157,949
48,194,393 46,036,444
32,246,053 48,194,393
1,420,582 1,302,254
16,7789 24,778
(1,270,582) {1,202,254)
166,779 124,778
347,072 222,294
513,851 347,072
$ 31,732,202 § 47,8473

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become

available.

See notes to the Town's financial statements for summary of significant actuarial methods and

assumptions.

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS {OPEB)

Schedules of Net OPEB Liability, Contributions, and Investment Returns (GASB 74)

(Unaudited)

Schedule of Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB liability
Plan fiduciary net position

Net OPEB liability (asset)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

Schedule of Contributions

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in refation to the actuarially determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Schedule of Investment Returns

Annual money weighted rate of return, net of investment expense

Schedules are intended to show information for 10 years.
Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

See notes to Town's financial statements for summary of
significant actuarial methods and assumptions.

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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2018 2017
$ 32,246,053 48,194,383
513,851 347,072
$ 31,732,202 47,847,321
1.58% 0.72%
2018 2017
$ 4327970 4,143,844
1,420,582 1,302,254
$ 2,807,388 2,841,580
2018 2017
3.98% 9.14%



Attachment B

West Island Improvement Association, Inc.
41 Causeway Road Fairhaven, Massachusetts 02719

Michael Karalis, President

West Island Improvement Association
41 Causeway Road

Fairhaven MA 02719

Ph. 401-640-5769

Email: mkwestis@yahoo.com

To:

Town of Fairhaven

Massachusetts Office of the Board of Selectmen
40 Center Street Fairhaven, MA 02719

May 20, 2019

Honorable Selectmen,

Happy Spring. | am writing this letter to request permission for the West Island
Improvement Association to be allowed to use Hoppy’s Landing for our Annual West Island
Regatta as we have in previous years. The date of the Regatta is Saturday, July 20, 2019. In
previous years you have been gracious enough to allow us to use Hoppy’s Landing parking for
no charge for the day and would appreciate it if that would be granted again this year.

This year we would also like you to consider allowing us to use Hoppy’s Landing for our
awards ceremony at the end of the Regatta with a small, controlled cookout for the participants
and their families. We would make sure that everything was cleaned up accordingly at the
conclusion of the event. We also would expect that you may have expectations that are met by us
and we welcome your input.

Thank you for your time and consideration on this matter.
Michael Karalis


mailto:mkwestis@yahoo.com
vicki
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Attachment C
TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN, MASSACHUSETTS

CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Town Hall - 40 Center Street - Fairhaven, MA 02719

e

FCRll]

Memorandum

Date: May 31, 2019

To: Board of Selectmen, Mark Rees, Town Administrator
From: Whitney McClees, Conservation Agent

RE: Sycamore Street, Assessors Map 20, Lots 24-26

The Town-owned property at the intersection of Sycamore Street and Magnolia Avenue
(Assessors Map 20, Lots 24-26) includes the following resource areas: Salt Marsh and its
associated 100-foot buffer zone, Riverfront Area, Bordering Land Subject to Flooding. Any work
done on the property will require the filing of a Notice of Intent and approval by the
Conservation Commission via the issuance of an Order of Conditions. Mr. Pinhancos indicated
that he would like to see some of the vegetation trimmed and maintained. Because of the
aforementioned resource areas located on the property, any work would likely need to be
assessed and overseen by a qualified wetland scientist to ensure no impact occurs, including
biological or chemical changes due to the removal of vegetation.

| directed Mr. Pinhancos to the Selectmen because the Town owns the property and any Notice
of Intent filing submitted to the Conservation Commission requires the approval and signature
of the property owner.

If the Selectmen elect to make a motion on Mr. Pinhancos’s proposal, my recommendation is as
follows:

Give permission and approval to submit a Notice of Intent to the Conservation
Commission, at which point the Conservation Commission will determine the feasibility

of the project.

The Selectmen or their designee will still need to sign the Notice of Intent application.


vicki
Typewritten Text
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Fairhaven Police Department
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 12/03/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-17882 1927 Phone - INTOXICATED PERSON VERBAL WARNING
Call Taker: Dispatcher ASHLEY M STJOHN
Location/Address: (01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE, STREET STA.)
: Unit: 403 Patrol Scott D Coelho

Disp-19:27:00 Arvd-19:30:05 Clrd-19:41:24

Page: 1

Attachment D

- 122 MATIN ST
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Fairhaven Police Department

Page:

Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 11/24/2016 - Thursday

Call Number Time Call Reason Action

16-17487 0140 Initiated - TRANSPORT SERVICES RENDERED

Call Taker: Dispatcher ASHLEY M STJOHN
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 403 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAL

Arvd-01:40:00 Clrd-03:11:14



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 10/20/2016 - Thursday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-15745 22086 911 - FIGHT ARREST 17 AND OVER MALE
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michasl A Sullivan
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERTY BRIDGE STREET STA.} - 122 MAIN 8T
Unit: .408 Patrol Andrew Quintin
Disp-22:06:00 Arvd-22:10:04 Clrd-22:17:00
Unit: 401 Patrol Pamela A Bourgault
Disp-22:06:00 Arvd-22:08:45 Clrd-22:38:49
Unit: 404 Sergeant Daniel M Dorgan
Disp-22:08:48 Arvd-22:08:50 Clrd-22:38:51
Unit: 403 Patrcl Wayne Mello

Disp-22:08:52 Arvd-22:10:02 Clrd-22:38:48



Fairhaven Pclice Department Page:
Call Wumber Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 11/19/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-17213 Q050 Phone - DISTURBANCE LOUD NOISE UNFQUNDED
Calli Taker: 048 - Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: {01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MATN ST
Unit: 408 Patrol Richard A Ciccone Jr ‘
Disp-00:51:46 Arvd-00:54:10 Clrd-00:57:55
Unit: 401 Patrol Christopher Bettencourt

Disp-00:51:46 Arvd-00:54:10 Clrd-00:57:55



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 11/14/2016 - Monday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-16983 1938 911l - DOMESTIC VICLENCE INVESTIGATED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan ‘ )
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 405 - Patrol Andrew Quintin
Disp-19:38:00 Arvd-19:40:16 Clrd-20:07:38
Unit: 401 Patrol Marcy L Haaland
Disp-19:38:00 Arvd-19:40:16 Clrd-20:07:36
Unit: 408 Patrol Wayne Mello

Disp-19:40:44 Arvd-19:40:48 Clrd-20:07:40



Fairhaven Police Department

Page:
Call Numker Printed: 05/15/201%
For Date: 11/05/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reascn Action
16-16510 0427 Phone - INFORMATION SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher ASHLEY M STJOHN
Location/Address:

[01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.} - 122 MAIN ST



Fairhaven Police Department .~ Page:
" Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 11/04/2016 -~ Friday

Call Number Time Call Reason Action

16-16499 1929 911 ~ INFORMATION 14
Call Taker: Dispatcher ASHLEY M STJOHN

Location/Address: [C1 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN {FORMERLY BRIDGCE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 10/30/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-16209 D415 Walk-In - INFORMATION INCIDENT REPORT PREPARED
Call Taker: Dispatcher ASHLEY M STJOHN
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN &T
Unit: 408 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAL

Disp-04:15:00 Arvd-04:19:05 Clrd-04:59:09



Fairhaven Police Department

Page:

Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 10/20/2016 - Thursday

Call Number Time Call Reason Action

16-15746 2217 Initiated - ARREST ARREST 17 AND OVER MALE

Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/Address: [01 BRRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 408 Patrol Andrew Quintin

Arvd-22:17:00 Clrd-22:21:38



Fairhaven Police Department

Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019
For Date: 10/15/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-15462 0146 Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAT. SERVICES
Call Taker: Dispatcher Marie T Spoocner
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE
Unit: 401 Patrol Jerome Penha Jr
Arvd-01:46:00
Unit: 402 Patrol Richard A Ciccone Jr :
Disp-01:47:32 Arvd-01:47:3
Unit: 408 Patrol Edward J Riggs
Disp-01:48:03 ) Arvd-01:48:10
Unit: 405 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAL

Disp-01:48:14 Arvd-01:48:16

Page:

RENDERED

STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Clrd-02:04:31
Clrd-01:57:01
Clrd-02:04:31

Clrd-02:04:31



Fairhaven Police Department

Page:

Call Number Printed: 05/15/201%

For Date: 09/18/2016 - Sunday

Call Number Time Call Reason Action

16~14000 0207 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED

Call Taker: Dispatcher ASHLEY M STJOHN
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.} - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 408 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr

Arvd-02:07:00 Clrd-02:42:38



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 09/05/2016 - Monday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16~-13249 Q000 911 -~ AMBULANCE REQUEST REFERRED TO OTHER AGENCY
Call Taker: Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MATIN 8T
Unit: 409 Patrol James F Bettencourt
Disp-00:00:00 Arvd-00:00:15 Clrd-00:13:16
Unit: 402 Patrolman Frank M Snierek

Disp-00:00:00 Arvd-00:00:15 Clrd-00:13:16



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 08/03/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-13185 2116 Phone - VANDALISM INVESTIGATED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERM (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MATN ST
Unit: 401 Patrol Marcy L Haaland
Disp-21:16:00 Arvd-21:19:43 Clrd-21:28:18
Unit: 402 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr

Disp-21:19:47 Arvd-21:19:49 Clrd-21:28:16



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019%

For Date: 09/02/2016 - Friday
Call Number - Time Call Reason Action
16-13141 2121 911 - DISTURBANCE GENERAL AREA SFEARCH NEGATIVE
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN {FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
: Unit: 403 Patrol Andrew Quintin
Disp~-21:22:20 Arvd-21:23:34 Clrd-21:27:04
Unit: 408 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr
Disp-21:22:20 Arvd-21:23:34 Clrd-21:27:03
Unit: 401 Patrol Scott D Coelho

Disp-21:22:20 Arvd-21:23:34 Clrd-21:27:02



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 08/27/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reascon Action
16-12768 0151 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Marie T Spooner
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr

Arvd-01:51:00 Clrd-02:01:11



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: -05/15/2019

For Date: 08/26/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-12719 0043 Phone - ASSIST MOTORIST SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher ARIANNE WALKER
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN {FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN 8T
Unit: 403 Patrol Scott D Coelho

Disp-00:47:06 Arvd-00:48:26 Clrd-00:51:24



- Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 08/23/2016 - Tuesday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-12574 1603 Phone - DISTURBANCE LOUD NOISE SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher ARIANNE WALKER
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN 8T
Unit: 401 Patrol Pamela A Bourgault

Disp-16:08:386 Arvd-16:20:53 Clrd-16:20:55



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/201%

For Date: 08/05/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-11456 2113 Phone - DRUG OVERDOSE _ REMOVED TO HOSPITAL
Call Taker: Dispatcher ARIANNE WALKER
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 403 Patrol Richard A Ciccone Jr

Disp-21:13:00 Arvd-21:17:54 Clrd-22:05:02



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019%

For Date: 08/05/2016 -~ Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-11454 2113 Phone - AMBULANCE REQUEST REMOVED TQ HOSPITAL
Call Taker: Dispatcher ARIANNE WALKER
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 403 Patrol Richard A Ciccone Jr

Disp-21:14:56 Arvd-21:17:43 (Clrd-22:05:28



_ Fairhaven Police Department : Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/201%

For Date: 08/05/2016 -~ Friday

Call Number Time Call Reasocon Action

16-11450 1952 Phorie - PROPERTY (LOST) SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher ARIANNE WALKER

Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST



Fairhaven Police Department

Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 07/24/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-10748 0155 Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAL FEACE RESTORED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.
Unit: 402 Patrol James F Bettencourt
Arvd-01:55:00 Clrd-01:59:
Unitc: 403 Patrol Jercme Penha Jr
Disp-01:56:46 Arvd-01:56:48 Clrd-01:59:
Unit: 408 Sergeant Kevin R Swain
Disp~01:56:51 Arvd-01:56:53 Clrd-01:59:
Unit: 401 Patrol Marcy L Haaland
Disp-01:56:56 Arvd-01:57:00

Clrd-01:59:

)

44
40
42

37

Page:

- 122 MAIN 38T



Fairhaven Police Department

Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019
For Date: 07/23/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-10738 2116 Other - AMBULANCE REQUEST REFERRED TO OTHER AGENCY
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/aAddress:

[01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.} - 122 MAIN ST



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 07/23/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16~10736 2104 Phone - INTOXICATED PERSON SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/Address: {01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 402 Patrol Wayne Mello
Disp-21:04:00 Arvd-21:06:53 Clrd-21:33:21
Unit: 401 Patrol Pamela A Bourgault
Disp-21:04:00 Arvd-21:06:53 Clrd-21:03:00
Unit: 401 Patrol Pamela A Bourgault

Disp-21:10:21 Arvd-21:10:30 Clrd-21:33:21



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 07/23/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-10688 0002 Phone - DISTURBANCE MOTOR VERICLE AREA SEARCH NEGATIVE
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 403 Patrol Jerome Penha Jr

Disp-00:02:00 Arvd-00:05:25 Clrd-00:15:42



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 07/21/2016 - Thursday
Call Number Time Call Reason ‘ Action
16-10586 -0911 Walk-In - ACCIDENT (HIT AND RUN) INVESTIGATED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Marie T Spocner
Location/Address: [0l BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN 8T
Unit: 403 Patrol Jason § Tavares

Disp-09:15:32 Arvd-09:18:50 Clrd-09:29:00



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 07/18/2016 - Monday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-10413 0116 Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAL PEACE RESTORED
Call Taker: = Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 408 Sergeant Kevin R Swain

Arvd-01:16:00 Clrd-01:17:31



Fairhaven Police Department

Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019
For Date: 07/04/2016 - Monday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-8622 0150 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Lecation/Address: [0l BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 409 Patrol James F Bettencourt

Arvd-01:50:00 Clrd-02:01:10



‘Fairhaven Police Department

Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019
For Date: 06/05/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-8016 0030 Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAL PEACE RESTORED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN ( FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 402 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAL

Arvd-00:30:21 Clrd-00:44:26



Fairhaven Pclice Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019
For Date: 05/29/2016 -~ Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reascn - Action
16-7650 0109 911 -~ FIGHT PEACE RESTORED
Call Taker: Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal .
Location/Bddress: [0l BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 409 Patrol James F Bettencourt
Disp-01:09:00 Arvd-01:11:38 Clrd-01:24:03
Unit: 408 Patrol Christopher Bettencourt
Disp-01:09:00 : Arvd-01:11:38 Clrd-01:24:03
Unit: 403 Patrol Scott D Coelho
Disp-01:09:00 Arvd-01:11:38 Clrd-01:24:03
Unit: 402 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAL
Disp-01:09:00 Arvd-01:11:38 Clrd-01:24:03



Fairhaven Poclice Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 05/27/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-7591 2328 Phone - DISTURBANCE GENERAL AREA SEARCH NEGATIVE
Call Taker: Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) -~ 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 409 Patrol Wayne Mello
Disp-23:28:00 Arvd-23:30:00 Clrd-23:36:17
Unit: 403 Patrol Kevin W Chasse

Disp-23:28:00 Arvd-23:30:00 Clrd-23:36:17



Fairhaven Police Department
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

Page:

For Date: 05/22/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-7239 0158 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: Dispatcher ARIANNE WATLKER
Location/Address: {01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.} - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 408 Sergeant David R Sobral

Arvd-01:59%:00 Clrd-02:06:02



Fairhaven Police Department

Page:

Call Number Frinted: 05/15/201%

For Date: 05/21/2016 - Saturday

Call Number Time Call Reason Action

16-7182 0125 Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAL SERVICES RENDERED

Call Taker: Dispatcher Marie T Spooner
Location/address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.}) - 122 MAIN 8T
Unit: 409 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAIL

Arvd-01:25:00 Clrd-01:40:30



Fairhaven Police Department

Page:

Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 05/06/2016 - Friday

Call Number Time Call Reason Action

16-6336 0205 Initiated - ARREST ARREST 17 AND OVER FEMALE

Call Taker: Patroel Marcy L Haaland
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 403 Patrol Jerome Penha Jr

Arvd-02:05:00 Clrd-02:06:01

1



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

For Date: 05/06/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-6335 0203 Initiated - ARREST ARREST 17 AND OVER MALE
Call Taker: Patrol Marcy L Haaland
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTTNS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET S8TA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 409 Patrol James F Bettencourt

Arvd-02:03:00 Clrd-02:06:24



For Date: 05/06/2016

Fairhaven Police Department
Call Number Printed: 05/15/2019

- Friday

Call Reason

Call Numbar Time
16-6334 0200
Call Taker:
Location/Address:
Unit:
Unit:
Unit:
Unit:

Unit:

Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAT

Patrol Marcy L Haaland

Action

ARREST 17 AND OVER FEMALE

Page:

[0l BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN !(FORMERLY RRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
409 Patrol James F Bettencourt

408 Patrol Scott D Coelho
Disp-02:01:56

404 Sergeant Timothy F Souza
Disp-02:01:56

403 Patrel Jerome Penha Jr
Disp-02:01:56

402 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAL
Disp-02:01:56

Arvd-02:00:00

Clrd-02:
Clrd-02:
Clrd-02:
Clrd-02:

Clrd-02:

03:

06:

06:

C5:

06:

00

26

26

00

26

1



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
call Number Printed: 07/31/2019 ' '

For Date: 04/26/2016 - Tuesday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-5870 0146 Phone - DISTURBANCE GENERAL UNFQUNDED
Call Taker: 048 - Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 402 Patrolman Frank M Sniezek
Disp-01:46:00 Arvd-01:49:35 Clrd-01:50:46
Unit: 401 Patreol Christopher Bettencourt

Disp-01:46:00 Arvd-01:49:35 Clrd-01:50:46



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 04/16/2016é - BSBaturday
Call Number Time <Call Reason Action
16-5355 0202 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 098 - Dispatcher Maureen DiCarlo
Location/Address: [0 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FCRMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant David R Sobral

Arvd-02:02:00 Clrd-02:05:13



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 04/08/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-4870 0203 Initiated - DISTURBANCE LOUD NOISE PEACE RESTORED
Call Taker: 048 - Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 408 Patrcl James F Bettencourt
Arvd-02:03:00 Clrd-02:12:08
Unit: 404 Sergeant David R Sobral
Disp-02:03:00 Arvd-02:03:39 Clrd-02:12:08
Unit: 401 Patrol Christopher Bettencourt

Disp-02:03:00 Arvd-02:03:39 Clrd-02:12:08



Fairhaven Police Department Page:

Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 04/08/2016 - Friday

Call Number Time Call Reason Action

16-4872 0209 Inifiated - TRANSPCRT RETURNED TO HOME OR FAMILY

Call Taker: 048 - Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant David R Sobral

Arvd-02:09:00 Clrd-02:14:16

1



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/29/2016 - Tuesday
Call Number Timea Call Reason Action
16-4341 1301 Initiated - ARREST/WARRANT ARREST 17 AND OVER MALE
Cali Taker: 0109 - Dispatcher ARIANNE WALKER
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant Daniel M Dorgan
Arvd-13:01:00 Clrd-13:06:25
Unit: 403 Patrol Jason S Tavares
Disp-13:02:57 Arvd-13:02:59 Clrd-13:09:01
Unit: 402 Patrol Alexander Kisla
Disp-13:04:10 Arvd-13:04:52 Clrd-13:09:01

Patrol Edward J Riggs



Fairhaven Police Depariment
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/29/2016 - Tuesday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-4367 2123 Initiated - PROTECTIVE CUSTODY PROTECTIVE CUSTODY
Call Taker: 010% - Dispatcher ARIANNE WALKER
Location/Address: [G1 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET S8TA.)
Unit: 405 Patrol Wayne Mello

Arvd-21:23:00 Clrd-21:27:38

Page:

- 122 MAIN ST



Fairhaven Police Department
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/25/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-4150 0202 Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAL PEACE RESTORED
Call Taker: 078 - Dispatcher Marie T Spooner
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)
Unit: 402 Patrol James F Bettencourt
Arvd-02:02:00 Clrd-02:06:13
Unit: 405 Patrol Christopher Bettencourt
Disp-02:04:08 Arvd-02:04:10 Clrd-02:06:13
Unit: 401 Patrolman Frank M Sniezek
Disp-02:04:13 Arvd-02:04:16 Clrd-02:06:13
Unit: 403 Patrol Jason 8 Tavares
Disp-02:04:18 Arvd-02:04:20 Clrd-02:06:13

Page:

- 122 MAIN ST



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/20/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-3884 0155 Initiated - PROPERTY CHECK SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 049 - Dispatcher Michael A Sullivan
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant David R Sobral

Arvd-01:55:00 Clrd-02:08:32



Fairhaven Police Department
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/20/201€6 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-3885 0201 Initiated - TRANSPORT SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 04% - Dispatcher Michael A Sulliwvan
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.}
Unit: 403 Patrol Jascn S5 Tavares

Arvd-02:01:00 Clrd-02:11:34

Page:

- 122 MAIN ST

1



For Date: 03/11/2016

Call Number Time

Fairhaven Police Department
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

- Friday

Call Reason

16~3241 0154
Call Taker:
Location/Address:
Unit:
Unit:
Unit:
- Unit:

Unit:

Initiated - DISTURBANCE GENERAL

Action

098 - Dispatcher Maureen DiCarlo
[01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)

404 Sergeant Daniel M Dorgan

403 Patrol Jason 8 Tavares
Disp-01:54:57

Arvd-01l:

Arvd-0L:

402 Patrolman Frank M Sniezek

Disp-01:54:52
405 Patrol Jerome Penha Jr
Disp-01:55:01

Arvd-Q1:

Arvd-01:

401 Patrol Christcopher Bettencourt

Disp-02:03:4¢6

Arvd-02:

24:00

54:58

55:00

56:10

03:47

PEACE RESTORED

Clrd-02:06:
Clrd-02:06:
Clrd-02:05:
Clrd-02:02:

Clrd-02:06:

oc

01

58

00

04

Page:

- 122 MAIN ST

1



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/11/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-3242 0202 Initiated - TRANSEORT RETURNED TO HOME QR FAMILY
. Call Taker: 098 - Dispatcher Maureen DiCarlo
Location/Address: {01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 405 Patrol Jerome Penha Jr

Arvd-02:02:00 Clrd-02:12:03



Fairhaven Police Department Page: 1
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/06/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-2966 0153 Initiated - GENERAL SERVICES SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 048 - Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [0l BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FCRMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr

Arvd-01:53:00 Clrd-01:59:28




Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/05/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-2931 0152 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: . 019 - Sergeant David R Scbhral
Location/Address: [0L BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FCRMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.}) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr

Arvd-01:52:00 Clrd-02:04:33



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 03/03/2016 - Thursday
Call Number Time Call Reascn Action
16-2837 0211 911 - DISTURBANCE GENERAL INCIDENT REPCRT PREPARED
Call Taker: 078 - Dispatcher Marie T Spooner
Location/Address: [0l BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGF, STREET STA.} - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 40% Patrecl James F Bettencourt
Disp-02:11:00 Arvd-02:11:32 Clrd-02:46:04
Unit: 403 Patrol Jerome Penha Jr
Digp~02:11:00 Arvd-02:11:32 Clrd-02:46:08
Unit: 401 Patrol Marcy L Haaland
Disp-02:11:00 Arvd-02:11:32 Clrd-02:50:00
Unit: 404 Sergeant Timothy F Souza

Disp-02:25:57 Arvd-02:26:01 Clrd-02:26:03



Fairhaven Police Department Page:

Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 02/28/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Czll Reason Action
16-2642 0154 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 098 - Dispatcher Maureen DiCarlo
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN {FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr
Arvd-01:54:00 Clrd-02:09:47
Unit: 403 Patrol Jason 5 Tavares

Disp-02:08:41 Arvd-02:09:42 Clrd-02:09:45



Fairhaven Pclice Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 02/20/2016 - Saturday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-2280 - 0159 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 098 - Dispatcher Maureen DiCarlo
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant Michael J Bouvier Jr

Arvd-01:5%:00 Clrd-02:07:18



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 02/11/2016 - Thursday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-1860 0152 Initiated - TRANSPORT RETURNED TO HOME OR FAMILY
Call Taker: 048 - Dispatcher Lindsay Quintal
Location/Address: [C1 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 401 Patrol Jonathan G Alwves :

Arvd-01:52:00 Clrd-01:55:04




Fairhaven Police Department

Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 01/31/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-1333 0132 911 - DISTURBANCE GENERAL INCIDENT
Call Taker: 018 - Sergeant David R Sobral
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FCRMERLY BRIDGE
Unit: 408 Patrol Christopher Bettencourt
Disp-01:32:00
Unit: 404 Sergeant Timothy F Souza
Disp-01:32:00
Unit: 403 Patrol Jason S Tavares
Disp-01:32:00 ‘
Unit: 402 Patrol James F Bettencourt
Disp-01:32:00
Unit: 401 Patrol Marcy L Haaland

Disp-01:32:00

Page:

REPOCRT PREPARED

STREET STA.}

Clrd-01:

Clrd-01:

Clrd-01:

Clrd-01:

Clrd-01:

50:06

50:06

50:06

50:06

50:06

- 122 MAIN ST

1



Fairhaven Police Department
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 01/22/2016 - Friday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-956 2247 Initiated - GENERAL SERVICES SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 049 - Dispatcher Michael A& Sullivan
Locaticn/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)
Unit: 403 Patrol MATTHEW D SOBRAL

Arvd-22:47:00 Clrd-22:54:56

Page:

- 122 MAIN ST

1



Fairhaven Police Department Page:
Call Number Printed: 07/31/2019

For Date: 01/10/2016 - Sunday
Call Number Time Call Reason Action
16-417 0147 Initiated - Community Policing SERVICES RENDERED
Call Taker: 098 - Dispatcher Maureen DiCarlo
Location/Address: [01 BRIDGE] RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.) - 122 MAIN ST
Unit: 404 Sergeant Daniel M Dorgan

RArvd-01:47:00 Clrd-01:57:16



Fairhaven Police Department ' Page: 1
Case Report 07/31/2019

Incident #: 16-1031-OF
Call #: 16-16209

Date/Time Reported: 10/30/2016 0415
Report Date/Time: 10/31/2016 0040
Status: Incident Open

Reporting Officer: Patrol MATTHEW SOBRAL
Approving Officer: Sergeant Michael Bouvier

Signature:
Signature:
# OFFENSE(S) ATTEMPTED TYPE
LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: ZONE 1

RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)
122 MATIN ST
FATRHAVEN MA 02719

1 ABUSE PREVENTION ORDER, VIOLATE N Misdemeanor
2098/7 208a 7
OCCURRED: 10/30/2016 0415

# VICTIM(S) SEX RACE AGE 338N PHONE

1 .

DOB:

ETHNICITY: Not of Hispanic Origin
RESIDENT STATUS: Resident

VICTIM CONNECTED TO OFFENSE NUMBER(S): 1

# PERSON(S) PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE 38N PHONE

1 SCBRAL, MATTHEW D OFF. WITNESS M W 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FATRHAVEN POLICE DEPT

2 POLAND, AMANDA WITNESS F W 24 NOT AVATIL
46 8§ SIXTH ST
NEW BEDFORD MA (02740
DOB:




Fairhaven Police Department Page: 1
Case Report 07/31/2019
Call #: 16-11033
Date/Time Reported: 07/29/201¢ @ 1936
Reporting Officer: Patrol Pamela Bourgault
Assisting Officer: Patrol Wayne Mello
Booking Officer: Patrol Pamela Bourgault
Approving Officer: Sergeant Michael Bouvier
Signature:
Released To: Bristol County House
Released: 07/29/201¢ @ 2015
Signature:
# OFFENSE (S) ATTEMPTED TYPE
LOCATICN TYPE: Highway/Road/Alley/Street Zone: ZONE 1
111 MAIN ST
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
1 INDECENT A&B ON PERSCON 14 OR OVER T/W: GROPING BRE N Felony
265/13H 265 13H
OCCURRED: 07/29/2016 1936
SUSPECTED OF USING: Alcohol
WEAPON/FORCED USED: Perscnal Weapons (Hands/Feet/Etc)
# VICTIM(S) SEX RACE AGE SSN PHONE
1 CONFIDENTIAL
# PERSON(S) PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE SSN PHONE
1 i -
DOB
2 BOURGAULT, PAMELA A OFF WITNESS F W 00
1 BRYANT LN
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL
EMPLOYER: TOWN CF FAIRHAVEN
3 BOUVIER, MICHAEL SGT WITNESS M 13) 00
1 BRYBNT LN
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL
EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT
4 MELLO, WAINE OFF WITNESS M W 00 NOT AVAIL
1. BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL
EMPLOYER: TOWN OF FATRHAVEN




Fairhaven Police Department Page: 2
Case Report 07/31/2019

Call #: 16-11033

# PERSON(S)

PERSCN TYEE SEX RACE AGE 88N PHONE
5 FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPARTMENT BUSINESS
1 BRYANT LN
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
6
# OTHER PROPERTIES PROPERTY # STATUS
1 BOOKING VIDEO 16-510-PR

Bvidence (Not Nibrs Reportable)
QUANTITY: 1 VALUE: $0.00

SERIAL #: NOT AVAIL
DATE: (07/25/2016
OWNER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEP, ARTMENT




Fairhaven Police Department Page: 1
Case Report 07/31/2019

Call #: 16-15745

Date/Time Reported: 10/20/2016 @ 2206

Reporting Officer: Patrol Andrew Cuintin

Assisting Officer: Patrel Wayne Mello
Bocking Officer: Patrol Wayne Mello

Approving Officer: Sergeant Daniel Dorgan

Signature:
Released To: Bristol County House
Released: 10/20/2016 @ 2300

Signature:
# OFFENSE {S) ATTEMPTED TYPE
LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: ZCNE 1

RASPUTINS TAVERN (FOCRMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.}
122 MAIN ST
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719

1 DISORDERLY CONDUCT N Misdemeanor
272/53/F 272 53
OCCURRED: 10/20/2016 2206
SUSPECTED OF USING: Alcohol

2 DISTURBING THE PEACE N Misdemeanor
272/53/¢6 272 53
CCCURRED: 10/20/201¢ 22006
SUSPECTED OF USING: Alcchol

3 A&B ON POLICE QOFFICER T/W SPIT N Misdemeanor
265/13D/A 265 13D - AGGR
QCCURRED: 10/20/2016 2206
SUSPECTED OF USING: Alcchol
WEAPON/FORCED USED: Other
AGGR. ASSAULT/HOMICIDE: Other Circumstances

# VICTIM(S) SEX RACE AGE 38N PHONE
1 QUINTIN, ANDREW P OFF M W 00 NOT AVAIL

1 BRYANT LN
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719

DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT
INJURIES: None

ETHNICITY: Not of Hispanic Origin
RESIDENT STATUS: Resident

VICTIM CONNECTED TC OFFENSE NUMBER(S): 2

# PERSON(S) ’ PERSCON TYPE SEX RACE AGE S8N PHONE

1 MELLO, WAYNE OFF WITNESS M W ¢o . NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: TOWN CF FAIRHAVEN




# PERSON(S)

2 BOURGAULT, PAMELA A OFF
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02715
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN

3 DORGAN, DANIEL M SGT
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 0271%
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FHVN POLICE DEPT.

4 QUINTIN, ANDREW P OFF
1 BRYANT LN
FAIREAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

Fairhaven Police Department

Case Report

Call #: 16-15745

EMPLCYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT

5 STEMP, JAMES O
9 LIGHTHOUSE LNDG
HARPSWELL ME 04079
DOB:

# OTHER PROPERTIES

1 BOCKING VIDEO
QUANTITY: 1
SERIAL #: NOT AVAIL
DATE: 10/20/2016
OWNER: DORGAN, DANIEL M

PERSON TYPE

WITNESS F
WITNESS M
WITNESS M
PARTICIPANT M

PROPERTY #

16-718-PR
VALUE: $1.00

SEX

Page: 2
07/31/2019

RACE AGE SSN PHONE

W 00

W 00

W 00 NOT AVAIL

W 20

STATUS

Evidence (Not Nibrs Reportable)




Fairhaven Police Department Page: 1
Case Report 07/31/2019

Incident #: 16-728-0OF
Call #: 16-11456

Date/Time Reported: 08/05/2016 2113

Report Date/Time: 08/05/2016 2212

Cccurred On: 08/05/2016 2113
Status: No Crime Involwved

Reporting Officer: Patrol Richard Ciccone
hpproving Officer: Sergeant David Sobral

Signature:

Signature:

# EVENTS (8)

LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: ZONE 1
RASPUTINS TAVERN (FCRMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.}

122 MAIN ST .

FAIRHAVEN MA 02719

1 Suspected Drug Activity/OVERDOSE

# VICTIM(S) SEX RACE AGE SS8N PHONE

1

[y

B 1

# PERSON(S) PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE SS8N PHONE

1 GORDON, DAVID FF OTHER M W 00 NOT AVAIL
146 WASHINGTON ST
FAIRHAVEN MA 02715
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN FIRE DEPT.
2 ROCHA, JAMES FF OTHER M W 00 NOT AVAIL
146 WASHINGTON ST
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN FIRE DEPT




Fairhaven Pclice Department
Case Report

Call #: 16-6336

Page: 1
07/31/2019

Date/Time Reported:

Reperting Cfficer:
Assisting Cfficer:

Beooking Cfficer:
Approving Cfficer:

Signature:
Released To:

05/06/2016 @ 0205

Patrel Jerome Penha Jr
Patrel MATTHEW SOBRAL
Patrcl Jerome Fenha Jr
Sergeant Timothy Souza

Bristol County House

Released: 05/06/201l6 @ 0250
Signature:
# OFFENSFE (S) ATTEMPTED TYPE
LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: ZONE 1
RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)
122 MAIN ST
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
1 DISTURBING THE PEACE (INTERFERING WITH POLICE) N Misdemeanor
272/53/G 272 53
QCCURRED: 05/06/2016 0205
SUSPECTED OF USING: Alcchol
2 RESIST ARREST N Misdemeanor
268/32B 268 32B - SIMPLE
QCCURRED: 05/06/2016 0205
SUSPECTED OF USING: Alcohol
WEAPON/FCORCED USED: None
# VICTIM(S) SEX RACE AGE SS8SN PHONE
1 PENHA, JEROME OFF M B 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL
EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT.
INJURIES: None
ETHNICITY: Not of Hispanic Origin
RESIDENT STATUS: Resident
VICTIM CONNECTED TCO OFFENSE NUMBER({S): 2
# PERSON(3) PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE SS8N PHONE
1 SOBRAL, MATTHEW D COFF. 00 NQOT AVATL

WITNESS M W
1 BRYANT LN ’
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT




Fairhaven Police Department Page: 2
Case Report 07/31/2019

Call #: 16-6336

# PERSON (S} PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE S8N PHONE

2 PENHA, JEROME OFF WITNESS M B 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FATIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT.

3 BETTENCOURT, JAMES WITNESS M W (o]0
1 BRYANT LN
FATIRHAVEN MA 02719591
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: TOWN OF FATIRHAVEN POLICE
4 COELHO, SCOTT OFF WITNESS M W 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL
EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPARTME
5 S8S0UZA, TIMOTHY F SGT. WITNESS M w 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT

ADDITIONAT, ASSISTING OFFICERS

Patrol James Bettencourt Patrel Scott Coelho




Fairhaven Police Department Page: 1
Case Report 07/31/2019
Call #: 16-6334
Date/Time Reported: 05/06/2016 & 0200
Reporting Officer: Patrol MATTHEW SOBRAL
Assisting Officer: Patrol James Bettencourt
Approving Officer: Sergeant Timothy Souza
Signature:
Released To: Bristol County House
Released: 05/06/2016 @ 0315
Signature:
# OFFENSE (3) ATTEMPTED TYPE
LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: Z0NE 1
RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)
122 MAIN ST
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
1 DISORDERLY CONDUCT N Mizdemeanor
272/53/F 272 53
OCCURRED: 05/06/2016 0200
SUSPECTED OF USING: Alcchol
2 DISTURBING THE PEACE N Misdemeanor
272/53/G 272 53
OCCURRED: 05/06/2016 0200
SUSEECTED OF USING: Alcchol
# PERSON(3) PERSCN TYPE SEX RACE AGE SSN PHONE
1 BETTENCOURT, JAMES WITNESS M W 00
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 027191
DOB: NOT AVAIL
EMPLOYER: TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN POLICF
2 PENHA, JEROME OFF WITNESS M B 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA Q2719
DOB: NQT AVAIL
EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN PCLICE DEPT.
3 CCELHC, SCOTT OFF WITNESS M W 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVATT
EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPARTME
4 SOBRAL, MATTHEW D OFF. WITNESS M w 00 NOT AVAIL

1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NCT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT
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Incident #: 16-94-0OF
Call #: 16-1333

Date/Time Reported: 01/31/2016 (132
Report Date/Time: 01/31/2016 02586
Status: Incident Open

Reporting Officer: Patrol Marcy Haaland
Approving Officer: Sergeant Timothy Socuza

Signature:
Signature:
# OFFENSE(S) ATTEMPTED TYPE
LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: ZONE 1
RASPUTINS TAVERN {FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)
122 MAIN ST
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
1 PCSSIBLE ASSAULT W. DANG WEAPCN T/W BATON, NO VICT N Misdemeanor
MISC 001 001

QCCURRED: 01/31/2016 0132

# PERSCN (8} PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE S8SN PHONE
1 HAALAND, MARCY = OFF WITNESS F W 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN

FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT

2 TAVARES, JASON OFF WITNESS M W 00 NOT AVATIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT.

3 BETTENCOURT, CHRISTOPHER OFF WITNESS M W 00 'NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT

4 BETTENCOURT, JARMES OFF WITNESS M w 00
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 0271891
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: TOWN OF FAIRHAVEN POLICE
5 80UzA, TIMOTHY F S8GT. WITNESS M W 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FAIRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVATL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT




Fairhaven Police Department Page: 1
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Call #: 16-4341

Date/Time Reported: 03/29/2016 @ 1301

Reporting Officer: Sergeant Daniel Dorgan

Assisting Officer: Patrol Jason Tavares
Bocking Officer: Patrecl Jason Tavares

Approving Officer: Sergeant Daniel Dorgan

Signature:
Released To: District Court
Released: 03/29/2016 @ 1330

Signature:

# OFFENSE (S) ATTEMPTED TYPE

LOCATION TYPE: Bar/Night Club Zone: ZONE 1

RASPUTINS TAVERN (FORMERLY BRIDGE STREET STA.)

122 MAIN ST

FATIRHAVEN MA (02719
1 WARRANT ARREST, 1433CR4694 UNLIC. QPERATION/IMPROP N Migdemeanor

WARR 0010 01

OCCURRED: 03/29/2016 1301
FINE: 0.00

# PERSON(S) PERSON TYPE SEX RACE AGE S8N PHONE
1 DORGAN, DANIEL M SGT WITNESS M W 00

1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FHVN POLICE DEPT.
2 TAVARES, JASON OFF WITNESS ' M W 00 NOT AVAIL
1 BRYANT LN
FATRHAVEN MA 02719
DOB: NOT AVAIL

EMPLOYER: FAIRHAVEN POLICE DEPT.




Attachment E

Vicki Paquette

From: Christopher Markey <cmarkeylaw@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, June 3, 2019 12:06 PM

To: Thomas P. Crotty

Subject: Security Plan

Attachments: Proposed Security for Rasputin.pdf; Untitled attachment 00109.htm

Tom: I have attached proposed security plan which the police chief has agreed to. I know you mentioned the
possibility of a suspension. My clients I thin are willing to discussing closing at 1:00 AM for a 6 month
period. I have reviewed the call logs and saw tat the majority of the calls related to Rasputin’s occurred late
night with general disturbance. I think if the board was willing to do that it would help quite a bit. Also, I still
have concerns re: Selectman Freitas' comments last meeting re: a text message he allegedly received re: a
“situation” at the establishment. We will have witnesses who were present at the establishment all evening and
no such “situation” occurred. I feel like his ability to remain impartial may be tainted. I want to raise that
with you now - so at least you have a heads up. Understanding his position from the May 6, 2019 meeting and
his interest in suspending the license and his concern. He alleges he received a text message from an unnamed
person in the established on a Saturday evening. Selectman Freitas apparently did not call the police or notify
anyone of the alleged “situation”. I am not certain of your position on the matter but I would like to discuss
with you possibly this afternoon. Please feel free to pass along the proposal re: the security plan to the board
and Mr. Rees.

Chris
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Attachment F

To: Captain Michael Botelho
From: Sergeant Kevin Swain
Date: May 30, 2019

RE: Rasputin’s Compliance Check

On Thursday, May 30", at approximately 2215 hours, I conducted a compliance check at
Rasputin’s Tavern, located at 122 Main Street. Upon cnteriﬁg the establishment, [ was met by
Billy Brown. Mr. Brown identified himself as security personnel. Mr. Brown introduced me to
Joéhua Nguin, who was also on duty as security. I asked Brown if there was a manager on duty
and he advised me that he was also the manager. I observed approximately twenty patrons inside
of the building and there appeared to be one bartender on duty. There were no patrons loitering
outside of the building and there did not appear to be any issues occurring inside the

establishment.

Respectfully submitted,

S

Sergeant Kevin Swain


vicki
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To: Captain Michael Botelho
From: Sergeant Daniel M. Dorgan
Date: Friday, May31, 2019

RE: Rasputin’s Compliance Check

Sir,
On the above date at 2226 hours, I conducted a check for safety measure
compliance at Rasputin’s bar in Fairhaven. Below is a report of my findings.

Manager: Logan Avery
Security Personnel: Joshua Nguia, Nicholai Demello, and Logan Avery

General Observations: Establishment was not busy, around 20 patrons. Music was
playing however was kept to a reasonable level and general noise in the bar was
reasonable. No patrons appeared to be over served or disorderly. Security personnel were
dressed in T-shirts which identified themselves as Rasputin’s staff. Manager Avery was
also working as security personnel this evening. No other issues to report.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sergeant Daniel M. Dorgan




To: Captain Michael Botelho
From: Sergeant Daniel M. Dorgan
Date: Saturday, June 01, 2019

RE: Rasputin’s Compliance Check

Sir,

On the above date at 2250 hours, 1, along with Officer Scoft Coelho, conducted a
check for safety measure compliance at Rasputin’s bar in Fairhaven. Below is a report of
ny findings.

Manager: Jake Marques
Security Personnel: Ryan Deterra, Caleb Cebula, Jake Marques

General Observations: Officer Coelho noted approximately 23 patrons in bar. Music was
playing however was kept to a reasonable level and general noise in the bar was
reasonable. No patrons appeared to be over served or disorderly. Security personnel were
dressed in T-shirts which identified themselves as Rasputin’s staff. Manager Marques
was also working as security personnel this evening. No other issues to report.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sergeant Daniel M. Dorgan




Attachment G

Proposed Security for Rasputin

1. There will be a “manager log”. The manager log will be maintained behind the bar and
it will provide law enforcement the name, cell phone, and address of all the on-duty
managers. The log will also include the past on-duty managers listed daily.

2. There will be “ID scanner” at the front door to assure persons entering will be over the
age of twenty-one.

3. There will be security on duty Thursday, Friday, and Saturday evenings and Friday

afternoon.
a. Thursday — Two Security personnel
b. Friday afternoon- One Security Personnel
c. Friday evening — Three security Personnel
d. Saturday evening — Three security Personnel

4. The security personnel will be responsible for the following:

d.

b.
c.
d

bl o}

Entry of person over 21 (use of scanner at entrance)

Assuring restrooms are not overly crowd or groups entering at the same time
Notify bartenders if person is intoxicated

Assure people are not bringing in their own alcohol, nor are they exited the
premises with alcoholic beverage.

Call police when there is a disturbance

Make sure there is one security personnel outside at the time of closing to
assure people are moving along, })Q.H-u"-w SR < M oksd.

Make sure employees are not dancing on table, bar, or doing body shots.

5. Make sure the security cameras are working and that they are recording and if
necessary, provide recordings to law enforcement to assist in any investigation.
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Attachment H

IN RE: RASPUTIN’S TAVERN

o,
& ¥
e
FINDINGS OF FACT I%
License and Hearing Procedure: k’
1. Fourth and Long, Inc., d/b/a Rasputin’s Tavern (“Rasputin’s”) is the holder of an

All Alcohol Beverages license issued by the Town of Fairhaven pursuant to G.L. ¢. 139, a
common victuallers license issued pursuant to G.L. c. 140, and a restricted entertainment license
issued pursuant to G.L. c. 140.

2. Rasputin’s is located at 120-122 Main Street, Fairhaven in a neighborhood of
mixed commercial and residential properties.

i As a result of numerous complaints made by neighborhood residents, as well as
calls for police services, the Fairhaven Police Department conducted an investigation of the
operation of Rasputin’s as well as related activities in and around Rasputin’s and compiled a
report regarding Rasputin’s for the calendar years 2017 and 2018.

4. Based upon that report, on April 22, 2019 the Board of Selectmen for the Town of
Fairhaven, as the licensing authority for the various licenses held by Rasputin’s, issued a notice
of hearing regarding alleged violations.

5. A copy of the April 22, 2019 notice of hearing was made a part of the record and
is incorporated by reference in these findings.

6. The noticed hearing was commenced before the Board of Selectmen on May 6,
2019.

7. A copy of the Fairhaven Police Department’s report entitled Investigation of
Liquor Law Violations;, Rasputin’s Tavern-122 Main Street, Fairhaven, MA 02719, Calendar
Years 2017-2018 was made a part of the record and is incorporated by reference in these finding.

8. The hearing was continued to June 4, 2019 and concluded at that time.

Serving Underage Persons:

9. The police investigators identified several individuals under the age of 21 who
were served alcoholic beverages at Rasputin’s in violation of M.G.L. c. 138 §34.
10.  Those underage patrons apparently used “Registry of Motor Vehicle” documents.

The record is unclear what documentation was used.


vicki
Typewritten Text
Attachment H


11.  M.G.L.c. 138 §34B provides that it is a defense to a charge of serving a minor if
the licensee reasonably relied on a liquor purchase identification and or motor vehicle license.
The licensee presented no evidence to support a claim that it reasonably relied on such a state
issued identification card or motor vehicle license. The licensee does admit that its “scanner”,
apparently used to try to detect forged identification, is not working,

12.  The licensee violated M.G.L. c. 138 §34 by serving alcoholic beverages to
minors.

Serving Intoxicated Persons

13.  The police investigators reported that many customers were served

excessive amounts of alcohol, including in excess of five shots of liquor with five or

more beers in less than three hours.
14.  M.G.L. c. 138 §69 prohibits providing alcoholic beverages to intoxicated personc
15. Rasputin’s denies serving alcohol to intoxicated patrons and argues that some
persons bring their own alcoholic beverages into the tavern. However, Rasputin’s presented no
evidence to contradict the observations by police investigators that the cause of intoxication and 4\
over service was Rasputin’s itself. A
16. The licensee violated M.G.L. ¢. 138 §69 by serving alcoholic beverages to

intoxicated persons.

Sale and/or Use of Illegal Drugs:

17. State regulations prohibit the licensee from allowing illegal activity on the
licensed premises. 204 CMR 2.05(2)

18.  Police investigators observed persons known to have a history of narcotic
distribution on the premises. Often those known drug dealers went in a group with other
individuals into the men’s room, where they stayed for a short time, then all exited together.

19.  One known drug dealer was seen entering the men’s bathroom with several other
men several times on one night.

20.  Rasputin’s denies knowledge of drug activity at the tavern.

21.  Itis a violation of 204 CMR 2.05(2) to allow illegal activity, even if the licensee

is not present.



22. The licensee presented no evidence to refute the observations made by the police
investigators, or the reasonable inference that the observed activity was related to drug use or
sales.

23. The licensee violated 204 CMR 2.05(2) by allowing illegal activity (drug use or
sales) on the licensed premises.

Disturbance of the Peace:

24. Police investigators observed patrons leaving the bar using loud, vulgar language,
playing music at unreasonably loud volume; urinating in public; and both in the bar and outside
the bar engaging in physical altercations, often involving police intervention.

25. These incidents have caused complaints by neighbors indicating that this behavior
has caused a disturbance of the peace.

26. The licensee presented no evidence to refute the observations made by the police
investigators, or on-duty patrol officers.

27 The licensee violated 204 CMR 2.05(2) by allowing assault, battery and
disturbance of the peace in or about the licensed premises.

Unsanitary Conditions - “Body Shots”

28. State regulations require that the licensed premises be kept in a clean and sanitary
condition at all times, including the use of clean glassware for serving drinks. 204 CMR 2.05(8)

29, Police investigators observed female staff providing patrons with “body shots”, a
practice in which a male customer squeezes lime on to the bartender’s body (breast or buttocks),
licks the lime from the bartender’s body, then drinks a shot of liquor.

30. The licensee offered no evidence to refute the police investigator’s observation of
“body shots” taking place.

31.  The practice of providing patrons with “body shots™ is a violation of 204 CMR
2.05(8).

Unsanitary Conditions — Dancing on the Bar:

32 Police investigators observed female staff dancing, kneeling or lying on the bar
while wearing bikinis and shoes or boots; lowering their breasts and buttocks into patrons’ faces,
while patrons put money into their bikinis in the arcas of their breasts, buttocks or vagina.

33.  The licensee offered no evidence to refute the police investigator’s observation of

dancing on the bar taking place.



34.  Dancing on the bar, in scant clothing, and physical contact with patrons placing
money inside the bartenders’ clothing is an unsanitary practice in violation of 204 CMR 2.05(8).

Entertainment without a License:

35.  Licensees are allowed to provide entertainment only pursuant to a license granted
under G.L. c. 136 §4.

36.  Rasputin’s has a limited music license allowing instrumental, radio or vocal
music, but no additional license for live dancing entertainment.

37.  The dancing performed by Rasputin’s employees violates G.L. c. 136; and
constitutes a further violation of 204 CMR 2.05(2).

General Findings:

38.  Police investigators reported that the numerous violations observed by them, and
found by this board to have occurred, took place in the presence of the licensee’s designated
manager, Matthew Cebula.
39.  The manager took no action to stop these behaviors, and often acted to encourage
the behavior which constitutes violations.
40.  The number of violations and the need for police response and intervention at this
licensed premises far exceeds the number of responses required at any other bar in the town; and O
far exceeds the average for all the other bars in the town.
41.  The numerous violations observed by police investigators and found by this board
are substantially the result of the licensee’s intentional acts or failures to act. K\
42. As the intentional cause of the violations, the licensee must be held accountable. )
REGULATORY ACTION

I The licensee’s All Alcohol Beverages license is hereby suspended for a period of

days, of which days shall begin on , 2019 and be continued

consecutively until , 2019; and

2. The remaining period of suspension of days is stayed pending a

probationary period ending on ,2019/2020. The remaining period of

suspension shall be served immediately upon a finding by this board that any further violation
has occurred during the probationary period; and may be served at the discretion of the board in
the event of a finding that a further violation has occurred after the end of the probationary

period.



The licensee may request the revocation of the remaining period of suspension

3.
after the end of the probationary period, upon proof that it has taken the management steps

necessary to avoid further violations.
4, The penalties set forth above shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, such other

penalties as the board deems appropriate in the event of further violation whether during or after

the probationary period.

14Vyqg



Attachment I

May 29, 2019

To Whom It May Concern,

Mr. Berube is requesting to have a handicap sign(s) placed in front of
his house due to having difficulty walking. There is a driveway at this
location, but it is used by another tenant of the building. He has stated to me
that he has a Handicap license plate.

This is not an unreasonable request and it has been explained that it
would not be his exclusive parking space. He stated that he understands and
that he would still like to be considered for this. This will be forwarded to
the Board of Selectmen for further consideration.

Respectfully submitted,

Officer Laurie A. Cannon/059
Fairhaven Police Department
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